
 
 

October 05, 2020                                                                           - 1 -                                                                               3:15 PM 

A G E N D A  •  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  M E E T I N G  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 5, 2020 6:00 PM           Council Chamber 

  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the 
City Council Chamber to participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk or General 
Services Director at (559) 324-2060 (TTY – 711).  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will 
enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Council Chamber. 

 
*SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC PARTICIPATION DUE TO COVID-19* 

 

Given the current Shelter-in-Place Order covering the State of California and the Social Distance 
Guidelines issued by Federal, State, and Local Authorities, the City is implementing the following 
changes to participate in Council meetings until notified otherwise. The Council chambers will be 
open to the public but we will be implementing social distancing policies and will limit the number of 
people who may be in the Council chambers. Face masks are required to attend. We are 
encouraging residents to participate virtually following the directions below.  If you are sick, please 
do not attend the meeting. Any member of the City Council may participate from a remote location 
by teleconference. 

 

 The meeting will be webcast and accessed at: https://cityofclovis.com/government/city-
council/city-council-agendas/ 

 

Written Comments 
 

 Members of the public are encouraged to submit written comments at: 
https://cityofclovis.com/government/city-council/city-council-agendas/ at least two (2) hours 
before the meeting (4:00 p.m.).  You will be prompted to provide:  

 

 Council Meeting Date 
 Item Number 
 Name 
 Email 
 Comment  

 

 Please submit a separate form for each item you are commenting on. 
 

 A copy of your written comment will be provided to the City Council noting the item number.  
If you wish to make a verbal comment, please see instructions below. 

 

Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2060 
www.cityofclovis.com 

1

https://cityofclovis.com/government/city-council/city-council-agendas/
https://cityofclovis.com/government/city-council/city-council-agendas/
https://cityofclovis.com/government/city-council/city-council-agendas/
http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/


October 05, 2020                                                                           - 2 -                                                                               3:15 PM 

 Please be aware that any written comments received that do not specify a particular agenda 
item will be marked for the general public comment portion of the agenda. 

 
 If a written comment is received after 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting, efforts will be 

made to provide the comment to the City Council during the meeting.  However, staff cannot 
guarantee that written comments received after 4:00 p.m. will be provided to City Council 
during the meeting.  All written comments received prior to the end of the meeting will be 
made part of the record of proceedings. 

 
Verbal Comments 
 

 If you wish to speak to the Council on an item by telephone, you should contact the City 
Clerk at (559) 324-2060 no later than 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 

 
 You will be asked to provide your name, phone number, and your email. You will be emailed 

instructions to log into Webex to participate in the meeting.  Staff recommends participants 
log into the Webex at 5:30 p.m. the day of the meeting to perform an audio check. 

 
 All callers will be placed on mute, and at the appropriate time for your comment your 

microphone will be unmuted. 
 

 You will be able to speak to the Council for up to three (3) minutes.  
 
Webex Participation 
 

 Reasonable efforts will be made to allow written and verbal comment from a participant 
communicating with the host of the virtual meeting.  To do so, a participant will need to chat 
with the host and request to make a written or verbal comment.  The host will make 
reasonable efforts to make written and verbal comments available to the City Council.  Due 
to the new untested format of these meetings, the City cannot guarantee that these written 
and verbal comments initiated via chat will occur.  Participants desiring to make a verbal 
comment via chat will need to ensure that they accessed the meeting with audio 
transmission capabilities.   

 
CALL TO ORDER 

FLAG SALUTE - Councilmember Whalen 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 

1. Presentation of Proclamation condemning racism, discrimination, bigotry, bias, and 
hate speech in our community. 

2. Presentation and Update on the Community Development Block Grant Funded 
Senior Meal Program. 

 

 

 

2



October 05, 2020                                                                           - 3 -                                                                               3:15 PM 

Public Comments - This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the City Council 
on any matter within the City Council’s jurisdiction that is not listed on the Agenda.  In order for 
everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 minutes per 
topic.  Anyone wishing to be placed on the Agenda for a specific topic should contact the City 
Manager’s office and submit correspondence at least 10 days before the desired date of appearance. 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS - With respect to the approval of resolutions and ordinances, 
the reading of the title shall be deemed a motion to waive a reading of the complete resolution 
or ordinance and unless there is a request by a Councilmember that the resolution or ordinance be 
read in full, further reading of the resolution or ordinance shall be deemed waived by unanimous 
consent of the Council. 

CONSENT CALENDAR - Items considered routine in nature are to be placed upon the Consent 
Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as one item unless a 
Councilmember requests individual consideration.  A Councilmember’s vote in favor of the Consent 
Calendar is considered and recorded as a separate affirmative vote in favor of each action 
listed.  Motions in favor of adoption of the Consent Calendar are deemed to include a motion to 
waive the reading of any ordinance or resolution on the Consent Calendar.  For adoption of 
ordinances, only those that have received a unanimous vote upon introduction are considered 
Consent items. 

3. Administration - Approval - Minutes from the September 14, 2020 and September 21, 
2020 Council Meetings. 

4. Fire – Approval – Res. 20-___, Amending the 2020-2021 FY Public Utilities and 
General Services budget to allocate funds for the purchase of four (4) command 
vehicles for the Fire Department, waive the formal bidding requirements, and authorize 
the purchase of four (4) Ford F250 3/4 Ton Crew Cab Pickups and associated 
equipment to outfit the vehicles. 

5. General Services - Approval – Res. 20-___, Renewing Medical Plan Options for 
Eligible Retirees and Restating the Eligibility Requirements for Participation in the Plan. 

6. Planning and Development Services - Approval – Bid Award for CIP 19-10, Sidewalk 
Improvements – W. Rialto and Villa Avenues; and Authorize the City Manager to 
execute the contract on behalf of the City. 

7. Planning and Development Services – Approval – Final Acceptance for Final Map for 
Tract 6080, located at the southwest area of Ashlan and Highland Avenues 
(Ashlan/Highland No. 1, LP – McCaffrey Homes). 

8. Planning and Development Services -  Approval - Final Acceptance for CIP 18-10 
Armstrong Avenue Reconstruction 

9. Planning and Development Services - Approval - Final Acceptance for CIP 18-13, 
Sunnyside Avenue Street Improvements. 

10. Police – Approval – Res. 20__, Amending the 2019-20 Police Department Budget to 
reflect the award of the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grants (JAG) 
Program in the amount of $15,431. 

11. Police – Approval – Res. 20__, Amending the Police Department’s Budget for FY 2020-
2021 to reflect the award from the Office of Traffic Safety Selective Enforcement Traffic 
Program Grant in the amount of $75,000.00 and the Office of Traffic Safety Traffic 
Records Improvement Project in the amount of $51,800.00. 

 

 

3



October 05, 2020                                                                           - 4 -                                                                               3:15 PM 

PUBLIC HEARINGS - A public hearing is an open consideration within a regular or special meeting 
of the City Council, for which special notice has been given and may be required.  When a public 
hearing is continued, noticing of the adjourned item is required as per Government Code 54955.1. 

12. Consider Approval – Res. 20-____, Amending the City’s Master Administrative Fee 
Schedule to Eliminate Clovis Transit Fares. 

Staff: Amy Hance, General Services Manager 
Recommendation: Approve 
 

13. Consider Approval – Res. 20-___, Accepting the Staffing for Adequate Fire and 
Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant award in the amount of $3,989,655 to staff nine 
(9) firefighters for a period of three (3) years and amending the 2020 – 2021 FY City 
Budget and Position Allocation for the required additional Fire Personnel. 

Staff: John Binaski, Fire Chief 
Recommendation: Approve 
 

14. Consider Approval – Res. 20-____, Accepting the Assistance to Firefighter Grant 
(AFG) and amending the 2020-2021 FY City Budget to reflect $144,147.27 in grant 
funding awarded to funding the purchase of Source Capture Extraction Systems 
(SCES) for City fire stations. 

Staff: John Binaski, Fire Chief 
Recommendation: Approve 

15. Consider Approval – Various Actions Associated with the Acquisition of Fire Apparatus.  

a. Consider Approval – Waive the City’s formal bidding requirements and authorize the 
sole-source purchase of one Pierce Triple Combination Pumper Fire Apparatus from 
Golden State Fire Apparatus in Sacramento, CA for a total purchase price of 
$748,277.25. 

b. Consider Approval – Res. 20-___, Amend the Public Utilities Department and 
General Services budget to provide funding for the purchase of one Pierce Triple 
Combination Pumper Fire Apparatus. 

Staff: John Binaski, Fire Chief 
Recommendation: Approve  

 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS- Administrative Items are matters on the regular City Council Agenda 
other than Public Hearings. 

16. Receive and File – Update on Fire Station 2 located at 2300 Minnewawa Avenue 
 

Staff: John Binaski, Fire Chief 
Recommendation: Receive and File 
 
 

4



October 05, 2020                                                                           - 5 -                                                                               3:15 PM 

WORKSHOP - For the Clovis City Council to conduct a workshop to discuss the impact on ongoing 
City operations during the COVID-19 State of Emergency as declared by the Federal Government, 
State of California, County of Fresno, and City of Clovis; and to explore actions the City may take 
in response to the crisis. 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

CLOSED SESSION - A “closed door” (not public) City Council meeting, allowed by State law, for 
consideration of pending legal matters and certain matters related to personnel and real estate 
transactions. 

17. Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION – One Case 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

MEETINGS AND KEY ISSUES 

Regular City Council Meetings are held at 6:00 P.M. in the Council Chamber. The following are future 
meeting dates: 

Oct. 12, 2020 (Mon.) 
Oct. 19, 2020 (Mon.) 
Nov. 2, 2020 (Mon.) 
Nov. 9, 2020 (Mon.) 
Nov. 16, 2020 (Mon.) 
 

5



6

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

  CLOVIS  CITY  COUNCIL  MEETING 
 
September 14, 2020      6:00 P.M.         Council Chamber 
 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Bessinger 
Flag Salute led by Councilmember Flores 
 
Roll Call: Present: Councilmembers Ashbeck, Flores, Mouanoutoua, Whalen 

Mayor Bessinger 
Absent: None 

 
ITEM 1 - 6:04 P.M. – PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION DECLARING SEPTEMBER 6TH 
AS "JASWANT SINGH KHALRA DAY".  
 
Councilmember Mouanoutoua presented a Proclamation to Harman Singh declaring September 
6th as "Jaswant Singh Khalra Day". 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - None 
 
6:09 - CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Flores, that the items on the 
Consent Calendar be approved.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 
2. Finance – Received and Filed – Investment Report for the Month of May 2020. 

3. Finance – Received and Filed – Treasurer’s Report for the Month of May 2020. 

4. Finance - Approved – Res. 20-120, Amending the 2020-2021 Budget to Reappropriate 
Carryover Funding from the 2019-2020 Budget. 

5. Police - Approved - Authorize the Purchase of the Intrado Viper 9-1-1 Phone System for 
the Police Department Alternate (backup) Dispatch Site. 

6. Public Utilities – Approved - Waive formal bidding requirements and authorize the purchase 
of a Grapple Truck off the Sourcewell Purchasing Contract from Nixon-Egli Equipment 
Company   

 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 
 
ITEM 7 – 6:10 - APPROVED – FOR THE CITY COUNCIL TO PROVIDE POLICY DIRECTION 
 REGARDING A REQUEST BY WILSON PREMIER HOMES FOR COUNCIL TO 
 AUTHORIZE STAFF TO BEGIN THE PROCESS TO AMEND THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
 SPHERE OF INFLUENCE TO ALLOW FUTURE URBANIZATION OF APPROXIMATELY 
 825 ACRES NORTH OF SHEPHERD AVENUE GENERALLY BETWEEN SUNNYSIDE 
 AVENUE AND NORTH CARSON AVENUE (BIG DRY CREEK DAM).   
 
 Senior Planner Ricky Caperton presented a report on a request for the City Council to 

provide policy direction regarding a request by Wilson Premier Homes for Council to 
authorize staff to begin the process to amend the City of Clovis Sphere of Influence to allow 

7

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

future urbanization of approximately 825 acres north of Shepherd Avenue generally 
between Sunnyside Avenue and North Carson Avenue (Big Dry Creek Dam). On March 2, 
2020, Council provided authorization to move forward with preparation of environmental 
studies for the expansion and urbanization of approximately 75 acres at the northeast 
corner of Shepherd and Sunnyside Avenues. Since then, the applicant put the project on 
hiatus through the Spring as a result of COVID-19. The applicant has recently decided to 
move forward again and requested to further expand the SOI boundary from what was 
previously considered to include an additional 750 acres, for a total of approximately 825 
acres.   

 
 Ricky Caperton provided an update to the March 2, 2020 hearing, and requests Council’s 

authorization to move forward with a revised SOI amendment to now include approximately 
825 total acres rather than the approximately 75 acres previously requested. With the 
Council’s concurrence, staff will schedule a public meeting to gather input from the owners 
in the revised SOI boundary, plus the Dry Creek Preserve area, before returning to the 
Council to consider a formal resolution initiating the SOI expansion application. Further 
details were provided in the letter of justification provided by the applicant’s representative, 
Dirk Poeschel of Land Development Services, Inc. 

 
 Charles Kellis, area resident spoke in opposition to the proposal due to concerns with light, 

noise, traffic, and not wanting to be in the city. Dirk Poeschel, representing the applicant, 
spoke in support. Norman Morrison, area resident, spoke in opposition to the sphere 
expansion. Arakel Arisian, representing the Ricchiuti family, commented on the proposal. 
Jared Callister, area resident, spoke in opposition. Jan Kull, area resident, spoke in 
opposition. Discussion by the Council. 

 
 Motion by Councilmember Mouanoutoua, seconded by Councilmember Flores, for the 

Council to authorize staff to begin the process to amend the City of Clovis Sphere of 
Influence to allow future urbanization of property generally bounded by Shepherd Avenue 
to the south, Sunnyside Avenue to the west, Behymer Avenue to the north, and North 
Carson Avenue (Big Dry Creek Dam) to the east with further direction to provide noticing 
to the area being considered, the Dry Creek Preserve, and 800 feet south of Shepherd 
Avenue when items related to this project are being considered.  Motion carried 4-1 with 
Councilmember Whalen voting no. 

 
ITEM 8 – 7:40 - RECEIVED AND FILED – UPDATE ON THE CITY OF CLOVIS INVESTMENT 
 PORTFOLIO STRATEGY 

 
Deputy Finance Director Jeff Blanks presented an update on the City of Clovis Investment 
Portfolio Strategy. In accordance with the City’s investment policy, as well as California 
Government Code sections 53601 and 53601.6, the City may invest its excess cash in a 
variety of investment instruments. The City currently invests in U.S. agency securities, 
certificates of deposit, and deposits with the California Local Agency Investment Fund, as 
well as an overnight sweep account with Union Bank. Due to the current interest rate 
environment, and in the interest of seeking greater yield (without sacrificing significant 
safety or liquidity), the City is seeking to invest in municipal bonds, which are allowable per 
the investment policy and the California Government Code. This change in strategy 
requires reporting to the City Council. There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger 

8

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

closed the public portion.  Discussion by the Council.  It was the consensus of City Council 
to receive and file the report.  

 
COUNCIL ITEMS 
 
ITEM 9 – 7:53 - RECEIVED AND FILED - CHANGE TO COUNCIL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
 City Attorney David Wolfe updated city council on recent changes to state law that requires 

council members to state they have a conflict of interest in an item should they arrive late 
or leave early from a council meeting. There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger 
closed the public portion.  Discussion by the Council. It was the consensus of City Council 
to receive and file the report. 

 
ITEM 10 – 7:56 - APPROVED – DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATE AND ALTERNATE 

FOR THE LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES’ ANNUAL CONFERENCE AND BUSINESS 
MEETING ON OCTOBER 7-9, 2020. 

 
 Luke Serpa presented a report on a request to have council identify voting delegates for 

the for the League of California Cities’ annual conference and business meeting on October 
7-9, 2020. There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the public portion.  
Discussion by the Council. Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by 
Councilmember Mouanoutoua, for the council to appoint Mayor Bessinger as the voting 
delegate and Councilmember Flores as the alternate.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
ITEM 11 – 7:59 - APPROVED - THE LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES’ ANNUAL RESOLUTION 

SET FOR APPROVAL AT THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE ON OCTOBER 7-9, 2020 
 
 City Manager Luke Serpa presented a report for the council to consider the League of 

California Cities’ Annual Resolution set for consideration at the Virtual Annual Conference 
and Business Meeting held on October 7 – 9, 2020, and provide policy direction for voting 
delegate. Each year at the Annual Business Meeting of the League of California Cities, 
each city has a voting delegate to vote on various resolutions that will guide policy actions 
of the League Board of Directors.  The City Council should review the annual resolution 
and provide policy direction to the City’s voting delegate. The proposed resolution states 
that the League of California Cities should urge Congress to amend Section 230 of the 
Federal Communications Decency Act of 1996 (CDA) to limit the immunity provided to 
online platforms where their forums enable criminal activity to be promoted. Ultimately, the 
policy objectives proposed under this resolution, if enacted, would incentivize social media 
companies to establish and implement a reasonable program to identify and remove 
content that solicits criminal activity. Section 230 of the CDA immunizes websites from 
legal liability for the comments of their users. When Congress enacted Section 230 in 1996, 
it wisely recognized that holding websites legally responsible for user-generated content 
would cripple the rapidly developing online world. Section 230 defines Internet culture as 
we know it: It’s the reason why websites can offer platforms for critical and controversial 
speech without constantly worrying about getting sued. 

 

9

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

 There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the public portion. Discussion by 
the Council. Motion by Councilmember Whalen, seconded by Councilmember Flores, for 
the council to direct the voting delegates to have discretion based on what they hear at the 
League of California Cities’ annual conference on how they should vote on this item.  That, 
as a city, we are expressing our support with the idea that we do our best to make online 
platforms hypersensitive  to responses from law enforcement in identification and 
apprehension of persons that are using the services of the platforms to solicit and engage 
in criminal activity.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
WORKSHOP – 8:12 
 
 City Manager Luke Serpa provided Council an update on COVID-19 numbers in Clovis and 

Fresno County.  
 
Mayor Bessinger adjourned the meeting of the Council to September 21, 2020  
 

Meeting adjourned:   8:38 p.m. 
 
 

______________________________  ________________________________ 
Mayor      City Clerk 

10

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

  CLOVIS  CITY  COUNCIL  MEETING 
 
September 21, 2020        6:00 P.M.      Council Chamber 
 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Bessinger 
Flag Salute led by Councilmember Mouanoutoua 
 
Roll Call: Present: Councilmembers Ashbeck, Flores, Mouanoutoua, Whalen 

Mayor Bessinger 
Absent: None 

 
PRESENTATION – 6:02 
 
ITEM 1 - PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING FRESNO IRRIGATION 

DISTRICT'S 100TH ANNIVERSARY. 

 City Council presented a proclamation to representatives of the Fresno Irrigation District 
recognizing the District’s 100th anniversary.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS – 6:20 
 
Marcus Alvara, resident, complained about a neighbor who put his trash out too soon for 
community clean up. 
 
Resident, raised concerns about the protest going on nationwide. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR – 6:34 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Flores, that the items on the 
Consent Calendar be approved.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 
2. Administration - Approved - Minutes from the September 8, 2020 Council Meeting. 
3. Administration - Approved – Request from Business Organization of Old Town to Extend 

Friday Night Farmer’s Market Street Closure from October 2, 2020 Through April 30, 2021. 
4. Administration - Received and Filed – Community and Economic Development Department 

July 2019 – June 2020 Report and Department Overview. 
5. General Services – Approved – Res. 20-121, Amending the Management and Executive 

Management Benefit Summary by Amending the Safety Command Staff Extraordinary Event 
Leave to Public Safety Extraordinary Incident Stipend; and rewording the explanation to 
provide a more appropriate description of the compensation; and updating the Management 
Benefit Summary to include the Public Affairs and Information Manager Classification to the 
Public Safety Extraordinary Incident Stipend; and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute 
the Agreement. 

6. Police – Approved – Res. 20-122, Amending the 2020-2021 Police Department Budget to 
reflect the Award of the Department of Justice Bureau of Justice Assistance FY 2020 
Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding Program in the Amount of $55,621. 

11

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

7. Police - Approved - Res. 20-123, Amending the Police Department’s Budget for FY 2020-
2021 to reflect the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 2019-2020 GAP Grant Award 
in the amount of $44,765. 

8. Planning and Development Services – Approved – Res. 20-124, Final Map Tract 6255, 
located at the southwest corner of Ashlan Avenue and Highland Avenue (Wilson Premier 
Homes, Inc.). 

9. Planning and Development Services – Approved – Res. 20-125, Annexation of Proposed 
Tract 6255, located at the southwest corner of Ashlan Avenue and Highland Avenue to the 
Landscape Maintenance District No. 1 of the City of Clovis. (Wilson Premier Homes, Inc.). 

10. Public Utilities – Approved – Waive formal bidding requirements and authorize the purchase 
of a flatbed truck with liftgate off of the Sourcewell Purchasing Contract from Pape Kenworth; 
and Approved – Res. 20-126, Amending the 2020-2021 Public Utilities Department 
Community Sanitation budget to allocate funds for the purchase of the flatbed truck. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

ITEM 11 – 6:37 - CONSIDER APPROVAL - RES. 20-127, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS CONFIRMING ASSESSMENT FOR ADMINISTRATIVE 
FINES FOR PROPERTY RELATED NUISANCES, 2153 WINDSOR AVENUE, CLOVIS, CA, 
APN NO: 550-222-18. 

 
     Assistant City Manager John Holt presented a report on a request for Council to approve a 

resolution confirming assessment for administrative fines for property related nuisances for 
2153 Windsor Avenue, Clovis, CA. Beginning in approximately September of 2014, the City of 
Clovis has been compelled to issue numerous administrative citations in the total amount of 
Nineteen Thousand Eight Hundred Thirty Dollars and Zero Cents ($19,830.00) as a result of 
ongoing property related nuisances at 2153 Windsor Avenue (“Property”).  The Property 
occupant, Daren McDaniel, has ignored these citations and the City’s demands to abate the 
underlying property nuisances for nearly six (6) years. At this time, the City is entitled to recover 
its enforcement costs from Mr. McDaniel and the Property, pursuant to Clovis Municipal Code 
(“CMC”) section 5.29.103.  Approval of the resolution will confirm these costs as an 
assessment and regular lien against the Property if not paid within 15 days of the passage of 
the Resolution. Police Corporal Josh Kirk provided an overview of activity at that address over 
the past five years.  

 
 Chip Wipfler, area resident, spoke in support approving the resolution. Maggie Leong, area 

resident, commented on the negative activity at that location for the past five years. Bill Scott, 
area resident, spoke in support approving the resolution. Brandon Leong, area resident, 
commented on the negative activity at that location for the past five years. 

 
 Discussion by the Council. Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember 

Mouanoutoua, for the Council to approve a resolution confirming assessment for 
administrative fines for property related nuisances for 2153 Windsor Avenue, Clovis, CA with 
additional direction to considering lowering the threshold below the current $20,000 and 
consider adding staff time versus just the dollar value of the citations. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 

 
 

12

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

 
ITEM 12 – 7:22 - APPROVED - RES. 20-128, SPR2018-005A2, A REQUEST TO CONSIDER AN 

APPEAL OF THE SITE PLAN REVIEW DENIAL FOR AN ADDITIONAL ACCESS POINT ON 
WILLOW AVENUE FOR A PREVIOUSLY APPROVED COMMERCIAL CENTER LOCATED 
AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF WILLOW AND ALLUVIAL AVENUES. EL CENTRO 
CORNER PETROLEUM LLC, OWNER/APPLICANT.  

 
 Associate Planner Lily Cha presented a report SPR2018-005A2, a request to consider an 

appeal of the site plan review denial for an additional access point on Willow Avenue for a 
previously approved commercial center located at the northeast corner of Willow and Alluvial 
Avenues. City Engineer Mike Harrison provided an overview of options and reasoning for 
staff’s recommended denial. SPR2018-005A2 was denied by the Director of Planning and 
Development Services on June 17, 2020. The request was denied based upon the established 
goals and policies of the General Plan and Municipal Code coupled with the jointly developed 
access plan between the City of Fresno and Clovis that identifies a limited number of access 
points along the Willow Avenue corridor. On July 23, 2020, the request was brought before 
the Planning Commission as an appeal to the Director’s decision, where the Planning 
Commission upheld the Director’s denial of the third project access point. The appellant has 
requested this appeal for Council’s consideration of the additional access point. After review 
of the applicant’s reasons for appeal, staff’s findings remain consistent with the initial site plan 
review denial and therefore staff recommends that the City Council make a finding to deny the 
appeal. The Project is considered a ministerial review that does not require environmental 
review based on Section 9.56.060 of the Municipal Code. 

 
 Dirk Poeschel, representing the applicant, Rick Ameran, commercial real estate broker, Jay 

Virk, business owner, Peggy Sulane, representing the applicant, Applicant, as well as two 
other Real Estate Brokers, all spoke in support of the additional access point on Willow Avenue 
for a previously approved commercial center located at the northeast corner of Willow and 
Alluvial Avenues. Trevor Beal, area business owner, spoke in opposition due to concerns with 
city allowing exceptions in city processes. Discussion by the Council.  Motion by 
Councilmember Whalen, seconded by Councilmember Mouanoutoua, for the Council to 
approve the resolution provided to City Council on the dais this evening identified as the 
resolution not recommended by staff, thus allowing the additional access point on Willow 
Avenue at the northeast corner of Willow and Alluvial Avenues. Motion carried by unanimous 
vote.  

 
ITEM 13 – 9:56 - APPROVED - RES. 20-129, ADOPTION OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 2019-2020 

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AND EVALUATION REPORT (CAPER) FOR 
EXPENDITURE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS. 

 
 Community and Economic Development Director Andy Haussler presented a report on the 

City of Clovis 2019-2020 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) 
for expenditure of Community Development Block Grant Funds. The U. S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires the City to adopt the attached 2019-2020 
CAPER reporting on the expenditure of Community Development Block Grant Funds. Andy 
Haussler provided an overview of the projects completed for 2019-2020. There being no public 
comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the public portion. Discussion by the Council.  Motion by 
Councilmember Whalen, seconded by Councilmember Ashbeck, for the Council to approve a 

13

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

resolution adopting the City of Clovis 2019-2020 Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report for expenditure of Community Development Block Grant Funds. Motion 
carried by unanimous vote.  

 
COUNCIL ITEMS 
 
ITEM 14 – 10:01 - CONTINUED – RES. 20-XX, A REQUEST FROM THE TORRANCE CITY 

COUNCILMEMBER MIKE GRIFFITHS REGARDING A REQUEST FOR THE CLOVIS CITY 
COUNCIL TO APPROVE A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF “CALIFORNIA CITIZENS FOR 
LOCAL CONTROL” 

 
 City Manager Luke Serpa presented a report on a request from the Torrance City 

Councilmember Mike Griffiths regarding a request for the Clovis City Council to approve a 
resolution in support of “California Citizens for Local Control”. Staff has drafted a resolution for 
City Council consideration based on an email from Torrance City Councilmember Mike 
Griffiths regarding a request for the Council to approve a resolution in support of “California 
Citizens for Local Control”. Councilmember Griffiths is leading a grass roots movement of 
volunteers from the southern California on a mission to spread awareness and enlist support 
to ensure cities can continue to manage their own land use and zoning issues.  It appears to 
be driven by state laws being considered and recently passed regarding housing and removing 
local control on how cities manage their development.  Councilmember Griffiths indicates that 
there is currently a “… volunteer group of about 40 passionate people” involved in the grass 
roots effort. To date, nine cities have approved a similar resolution, and one city opposed.  The 
nine cities are Torrance, Manhattan Beach, Lawndale, Palos Verdes Estates, Rolling Hills, 
Rolling Hills Estates, Rancho Palos Verdes, and El Segundo.  The opposition letter was from 
Redondo Beach. The Mission Statement of the League of California Cities which the City of 
Clovis is a member of that appears to be similar in nature to Councilmember Griffiths’ 
“California Citizens for Local Control”. Staff is presenting this item at the direction of Council 
for consideration to approve the resolution or not approve due to the perceived redundancy 
with the mission of the League of California Cities which the City of Clovis is a member of. 

 
 Discussion by the Council.  It was the consensus of City Council to table this item until at least 

after the League of California Cities annual conference in October.  
 
WORKSHOP 
 
ITEM 15 – 10:15 - CONSIDERED – A REQUEST FROM THE CITY AND COUNTY OF FRESNO 

TO ADD THE CITY OF CLOVIS AS A SIGNATORY ON A LETTER TO GOVERNOR 
NEWSOM URGING THE REOPENING OF RESTAURANTS AND COMMITTING THE CITY 
TO USE CODE ENFORCEMENT TO ENFORCE GUIDELINES FOR OPERATING OF 
RESTAURANTS TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH STATE AND COUNTY GUIDELINES. 

 
 Mayor Bessinger presented a report on a request from the City and County of Fresno to add 

the City of Clovis as a signatory on a letter to Governor Newsom urging the reopening of 
restaurants and committing the city to use code enforcement to enforce guidelines for 
operating of restaurants to ensure compliance with state and county guidelines.  Mayor 
Bessinger provided an overview of his communications with the City and County of Fresno 
regarding a proposed letter to the governor. He indicated that the letter had gone out last week 

14

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

less Clovis’ signature and he was concerned about the use of code enforcement to enforce 
guidelines for operating of restaurants to ensure compliance with state and county guidelines.  
Discussion by the Council.  There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the 
public portion.  It was the consensus of City Council to take no action on this item at this time.  

 
 City Manager Luke Serpa provided City Council an update on the COVID-19 pandemic 

numbers in the City of Clovis. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS – 10:37 
 
 City Manager Luke Serpa commented on the city supporting Fresno County with the fires with 

building inspections, and assistance with the Shaver Lake sewage treatment plant.  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS – 10:39 
 
 Councilmember Ashbeck commented on: 1. Former City Manager’s Allen Goodman wife’s 

passing; 2. Queried if staff is evaluating what happens post COVID-19, such as planning, retail 
space, etc.; 3. Asked if we could use volunteers for community service; and 4. Noting Bryson 
DeChambeau’s winning of the U.S. Open on Sunday. 

 
 Councilmember Mouanoutoua commented on how the city could celebrate Bryson 

DeChambeau’s winning the U.S. Open on Sunday, and asked about recognition of a police 
officer recently recognized for saving lives.  

 
 Mayor Bessinger noted that he had spoken at a pro-business rally in Fresno on Monday 

morning.  
 
CLOSED SESSION – 10:48 

 
City Attorney David Wolfe noted that Item 17 was added to the agenda because the city 
had received a demand letter from an attorney regarding the California Voters Right Act 
and challenging the city’s current at large election process.  
 
16. Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
Brianne Glick v. City of Clovis, et. al.;  
Fresno County Superior Court case # 19CECG00122 

 
17. Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION – One Case 

 
Mayor Bessinger adjourned the meeting of the Council to October 5, 2020  
 

Meeting adjourned:    10:59 p.m. 
 

______________________________  ________________________________ 
Mayor      City Clerk 

15

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Fire Department 

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Fire – Approval – Res. 20-___, Amending the 2020-2021 FY Public 
Utilities and General Services budget to allocate funds for the 
purchase of four (4) command vehicles for the Fire Department, 
waive the formal bidding requirements, and authorize the purchase 
of four (4) Ford F250 3/4 Ton Crew Cab Pickups and associated 
equipment to outfit the vehicles. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 20-___ 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a resolution amending the 2020-2021 FY Budget for Public 
Utilities and General Services to provide for the purchase of four (4) 3/4  ton Ford Crew Cab 
F250 Pickups as well as waive the formal bidding requirements and authorize the purchase 
of said vehicles. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Fire Department has a need to replace four (4) staff vehicles. Four (4) Ford F250’s will 
be purchased from Downtown Ford of Sacramento. The total cost of the four (4) vehicles and 
required equipment (which includes camper shells, radios, Code 3 package, general  
outfitting, and decals) will be approximately $399,764. 
 
The cost breakdown is $56,200 each (total of $224,800) for a 2021 Ford F250 ¾ Ton Crew 
Cab Pickup with XLT package and $43,741 each (total of $174,964) for the Code 3 lighting, 
radios, stripping, camper shell, and other fire-related items.  
 
The price quote from Downtown Ford meets the price awarded for the same vehicle which is 
identified in the publically bided State of California Contract 1-18-23-20A. The Fire 
Department requested quotes from other dealerships, including those locally, and the price 

16

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



from Downtown Ford was the lowest cost, and therefore most cost-effective for the City and 
Department. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Fire Department is in need of replacing four (4) of their current command vehicles so 
these existing vehicles can be used for Out of County responses to wildland fires and other 
disasters. Currently the Fire Department is utilizing 2004 Chevrolet Tahoe’s for out of county 
responses and they have unfortunately reached their end of life. When the Department 
responds to emergency incidents outside the local area, the City is reimbursed for the use of 
these vehicles. Over the past seven years, the Department has been reimbursed 
approximately $271,000 to offset a portion of the cost for the replacement of these vehicles. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The total purchase cost for four (4) new Ford F250 Fire command vehicles is approximately 
$399,997.00. The recommended vehicles meet the required specifications and the need of 
the Fire Department. The funds will be transferred from the General Services budget to the 
Public Utilities Enterprise Fund for Fleet to purchase the new vehicles. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Fire Department is requesting to replace four (4) existing command vehicles due to 
vehicle age and condition. These vehicles have been in use since 2004 and are at the end 
of their serviceable life.  
 
Staff has evaluated the available equipment and has determined that the proposed vehicles 
and equipment will meet the Fire Department needs. The proposed method of purchasing 
the equipment is cost effective and funds are available. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff will prepare purchase orders for the vehicles or the City Manager’s approval and the 
vehicles will be ordered and outfitted. 
 
Prepared by: Jim Damico, Battalion Chief 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

17

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 
RESOLUTION 20-___ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING 

AMENDMENTS TO THE 2020-2021 FY PUBLIC UTILITIES AND GENERAL 
SERVICES BUDGET AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS 
  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Clovis approved the 2020-2021 FY 
Budget on June 1, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Clovis Fire Department has a need for four Ford F250 ¾ 

Ton Crew Cab Pickups to service the City of Clovis; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the expenditure is necessary; and 
 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that City of Clovis amend the 2020-2021 

FY Budget for Public Utilities and General Services as shown in Attachment A.  
 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on ___________, 2020 by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
18

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 
 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT  
2020-21 

 
 Department 
 Public Utilities  $          399,764 
 Total $          399,764 
 

 
SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY FUND  

2020-2021 
 

Fund 
 Enterprise  $          399,764 
 Total $          399,764 
 
 

 
SUMMARY OF TRANSFERS BY FUND  

2020-2021 
 

Transfer In 

 

Fund   
  Fleet  $          399,764 
       Total $          399,764 
 
 

Transfer Out  

 

Fund   
  General  $          399,764 
       Total $          399,764 
 

ATTACHMENT A OF ATTACHMENT 1 
19

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services 

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: General Services - Approval – Res. 20-___, Renewing Medical Plan 
Options for Eligible Retirees and Restating the Eligibility 
Requirements for Participation in the Plan. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution Retiree Medical 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For City Council to approve Resolution 20-___; renewing the City’s Retiree Medical Plan 
options for eligible retirees and restating eligibility requirements for participation in the plan.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City has sponsored a group retiree medical plan for retirees who meet certain eligibility 
requirements for many years. Approval of the attached Resolution renews the retiree medical 
plan for the 2021 plan year.     
 
BACKGROUND 
For many years, the City has offered employees who retire from City service the option of 
purchasing the same medical and prescription drug benefit package offered to full-time, 
regular employees. The retiree medical plan option is renewed annually at the discretion of 
the Council. This option provides qualifying retirees (those with a minimum of five (5) years 
of full-time City service immediately preceding retirement) with the opportunity to continue 
participation in the City’s medical/prescription plans. Eligibility requirements for participation 
in the plan and rate information are listed in the attached (Attachment A of Attachment 1). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The retiree medical plan option is rated separately from the active City employee medical 
plan.  In addition, monthly premiums are paid entirely by the retirees.  Consequently, there 
is not a fiscal impact to the City for offering this program. 

20

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Council action is necessary to renew the retiree medical plan option for eligible retirees for 
the 2021 plan year. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Upon approval, the program renewal will become effective with the 2021 plan year, i.e., 
January 1, 2021. Eligible retirees will be provided with an open enrollment notice of their 
available options during the City’s open enrollment period (i.e., October 19 through 
November 13, 2020).  Additionally, employees who retire and become eligible during the 
2021 plan year will be provided with similar notice at the time of retirement. 
 
 
Prepared by: Lori Shively/Personnel Risk Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _AH__  

21

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

 ATTACHMENT 1  

RESOLUTION 20-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING AMENDING THE RETIREE MEDICAL/PRESCRIPTION PLAN SUMMARY 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City offers a retiree health plan that allows retirees to purchase medical 
and prescription coverage; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has established eligibility requirements for participation in the plan 
listed in the attached Attachment A of Attachment 1; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City also desires that these options be renewed for another year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City continues offering the retiree health plan that is determined on an 

annual basis at the discretion of the Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Clovis, 
hereby renews the Retiree Medical Plan Option and rates effective January 1, 2021, as 
summarized in Attachment A of Attachment 1. 
 

*   *  *  *    * 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on October 5, 2020 by the following vote, to wit. 
 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

     Mayor          City Clerk 
  

22

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan Summary  
For the 2021 Plan Year 

 
Retiree Benefits 
 
Effective January 1, 2021, retirees of the City of Clovis will be allowed to continue in a 
City sponsored Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan at their own expense, provided they 
meet the plan eligibility requirements. Enrolled retirees will participate in the annual open 
enrollment for the medical/prescription plans. 

Eligibility Requirements 

 
To be eligible for the Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan, a retired/retiring employee must 
meet the following eligibility requirements: 
 

1. Been continuously covered in the medical/prescription portion of the City’s health 
plan through December 31, 2020, as a full-time regular employee or a retired 
enrollee; or, was continuously covered by a City-approved group 
medical/prescription plan as a full-time regular City employee immediately 
preceding retirement from the City. 

 
2. Be eligible to retire in accordance with CalPERS age and service requirements, 

including disability retirement. 
 

3. Have a minimum of five (5) years of service with the City of Clovis as a full-time 
regular employee immediately preceding employment separation with the City of 
Clovis. 

4. Retired employees and their dependents are eligible for City coverage until they 
become eligible for Medicare. Retired employees and/or their dependents that 
become eligible for Medicare are no longer eligible to remain on the City’s retiree 
plans. They have the option of enrolling in Medicare and may seek supplemental 
coverage other than through the City’s plan.   

a. If a retired employee becomes Medicare eligible, and has a spouse who is 
not Medicare eligible or a dependent child under the age of 26, the spouse 
and child may continue City coverage even after the retired employee 
becomes Medicare eligible and enrolls in Medicare and a supplemental 
plan.   

b. A spouse who becomes Medicare eligible, or a dependent child who 
reaches the age of 26, will not be eligible to continue in the City’s Retiree 
Medical/Prescription Plan.   

 
 
 
  

 
 
 ATTACHMENT A OF ATTACHMENT 1 

23

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

 
5. An eligible employee who plans on retiring must enroll in the Retiree 

Medical/Prescription Plan within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of 
employment separation. If an eligible employee fails to enroll, or waives 
enrollment, they shall not be eligible to enroll in the plan at a future date. A 
dependent who enrolls or has been enrolled in an alternative insurance plan for a 
period of time, may be added to the retiree’s plan upon loss of other coverage or 
during open enrollment if the retiree has maintained continuous coverage with the 
City under this plan.   
 

6. Eligibility for dependents normally extends through the retiree. Dependents may 
only be enrolled for coverage if the retiree is concurrently enrolled (except as 
provided for in 4-a. above). Dependents of a retiree lose eligibility for coverage 
under the Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan when a non-Medicare eligible retiree 
elects to discontinue coverage. Upon the death of a covered retiree or the death 
of a covered employee who was eligible to retire, a spouse or covered child may 
continue coverage until the spouse is Medicare eligible and the child reaches the 
age of 26 respectively.  

 
7. A retiree or eligible dependent that enrolls in the Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan 

shall not be allowed to re-enroll in the plan if they drop coverage in the plan or fail 
to make their monthly premium payment within thirty (30) days of the due date. 

 
8. Continued enrollment in the Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan is also subject to 

terms and conditions set forth in the Evidence of Coverage/Disclosure Document 
of the medical plan in which the retiree and dependents are enrolled. 

 
A Retiree who returns to work for the City and enrolls in an active plan because of 
reinstatement from retirement or who has returned as an elected official, will again be 
eligible for retiree coverage upon retiring subject to the normal retiree requirements.   
 
 
Dental and Vision Coverage    
 
Dental and/or Vision Coverage is not available to retirees through the City of Clovis 
Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

 

Pre 65 Retiree Health Plan Monthly Rates charged by Vendor  
for the 2021 Program Year 

 

 Blue Cross HMO 15  Kaiser HMO 15    

 
Retiree Only                             $1,046.34       $   914.34 
Retiree & Spouse                     $2,162.11       $1,892.11 
Retiree & Child(ren) $1,877.81       $1,625.81 
Retiree & Family $3,128.01       $2,694.01 

 

 

 Blue Cross PPO 80                                             

 
Retiree Only                             $1,008.34            
Retiree & Spouse $2,113.11          
Retiree & Child(ren) $1,814.91          
Retiree & Family $3,017.01          

 

 

 Blue Cross HDHP  Kaiser HDHP                                        

 
Retiree Only $   729.34            $   717.34 
Retiree & Spouse $1,526.11         $1,483.11 
Retiree & Child(ren) $1,332.81         $1,274.81 
Retiree & Family $2,180.01         $2,112.01 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

25

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services Department 

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services - Approval – Bid Award for CIP 
19-10, Sidewalk Improvements – W. Rialto and Villa Avenues; and 
Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the 
City. 
  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Vicinity Map  
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. For the City Council to award a contract for CIP 19-10, Sidewalk Improvements – W. 

Rialto and Villa Avenues to Witbro, DBA Seal Rite Paving in the amount of $123,752.00; 
and 

2. For the City Council to authorize the City Manager to execute the contract on behalf of 
the City.  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Staff is recommending that City Council authorize the City Manager to award and execute 
the contract to Witbro, DBA Seal Rite Paving, who was the lowest responsible bidder from a 
bid opening that took place on September 15, 2020.  
 
This project involves improvements along Rialto Avenue from Villa Avenue to Lind Avenue 
and along Villa Avenue from Rialto Avenue to Gettysburg Avenue. Construction will consist 
of installation of new concrete sidewalk and ADA curb returns as well as demolition, 
modification, and reconstruction of existing drive approaches along Rialto Avenue and Villa 
Avenue for ADA compliance.  
 

  

26

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



BACKGROUND 
The following is a summary of the bid results as of September 15, 2020: 
 

BIDDERS BASE BIDS 
 
Witbro, DBA Seal Rite $123,752.00 
Advanced Concrete $147,299.44 
Clean Cut Landscaping $161,617.00 
V&G Builders, Inc. $181,046.50 
JT2 Inc., DBA Todd Companies $182,750.00 
American Paving Co. $186,116.00 
Eslick Construction, Inc.  $190.911.00 
HBC Enterprises $195,703.70 

  
ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE $ 176,858.00 

 
 
All bids were examined and the bidder’s submittals were found to be in order. Staff has 
validated the lowest bidder contractor’s license status. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
This project is budgeted in the Community Investment Program 2020-2021 fiscal year budget 
and is fully funded by the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program.  
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Witbro, DBA Seal Rite Paving is the lowest responsible bidder. There are sufficient funds 
available for the anticipated costs of this project.  
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 

1. The Contract will be prepared and executed, subject to the contractor providing 
performance security that is satisfactory to the City.  
 

2. Construction will begin approximately two (2) weeks after contract execution and be 
completed in twenty five (25) working days thereafter. 

 
 
Prepared by: Colleen Vidinoff, Engineer II 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager __AH__  

27

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



Wi
llo

w

Pe
ac

h

Clo
vis

Su
nn

ys
ide

Fo
wle

r

Ar
ms

tro
ng

Te
mp

era
nc

e

Lo
ca

n

De
 W

olf

Shepherd

Teague

Nees

Alluvial

Herndon

Sierra

Bullard

Barstow

Shaw

Gettysburg

Ashlan

Dakota

Le
on

ard

Hig
hla

nd

Mi
nn

ew
aw

a

4ATTACHMENT A
CITY LIMITS SPHERE OF INFLUENCE

VICINITY MAP

Prepared By: 

Project Location

1

CIP 19-10 Sidewalk Improvements - W. Rialto and Villa Avenue

October 5, 2020 Cleveland Wardrick28

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services – Approval – Final Acceptance 
for Final Map for Tract 6080, located at the southwest area of Ashlan 
and Highland Avenues (Ashlan/Highland No. 1, LP – McCaffrey 
Homes). 
 

ATTACHMENT: 1. Vicinity Map 
  

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. Accept the public improvements for Tract 6080, and authorize recording of the Notice of 

Completion; and 
 

2. Authorize release of the Performance Surety immediately and then release of the Labor 
and Materials Surety ninety (90) days after the recordation of the Notice of Completion, 
provided no liens have been filed; and release of Public Improvements Maintenance 
Surety upon the expiration of the one-year warranty period, and provided any defective 
work has been repaired to the City's satisfaction. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The owner, McCaffrey Homes, has requested final acceptance of the public improvements 
constructed or installed in conjunction with this tract. The public improvements include all 
those shown on the subdivision improvement plans approved by the City Engineer. The 
construction or installation of the public improvements is complete. The owner has requested 
final acceptance. Staff is recommending approval of their request. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The costs for periodic routine maintenance, as well as repairs needed as the improvements 
deteriorate with age and usage, will be incorporated into the annual maintenance budget of 
the Public Utilities Department as these costs are identified.  

29

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Subdivision Map Act requires that once construction of the required improvements has 
been completed in compliance with all codes, plans and specifications, and all other required 
documents have been completed and submitted, final acceptance is required and the 
appropriate sureties are released. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Record the Notice of Completion and release the Performance, Labor and Materials, and 
Maintenance Sureties as appropriate. 
 
Prepared by: David Gonzalez, Civil Engineer 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager __AH__  

30

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



ATTACHMENT 1

31

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning Development Services Department 

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services -  Approval - Final Acceptance 
for CIP 18-10 Armstrong Avenue Reconstruction 
 

ATTACHMENT: 1. Vicinity Map 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to accept the work performed as complete and authorize recording of 
the notice of completion. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The project involved reconstructing the pavement of Armstrong Avenue from Herndon to 
Tollhouse Avenues. Other improvements included ADA curb returns, signal loops and 
pavement striping. The project was funded by Measure C Pass through funds. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Bids were received on June 16, 2020 and City Council pre-authorized the City Manager to 
award the project to the low bidder on June 15, 2020. The low bidder was AJ Excavation, 
Inc. The project was completed in accordance with the construction documents and the 
contractor has submitted a request for acceptance of the project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



FISCAL IMPACT 
 

1. Award $ 187,679.00 
 

2. Cost increases/decreases resulting from differences $ 8,672.96 
 between estimated quantities used for award and 
 actual quantities installed. 
 
3. Contract Change Orders           $ 1,670.00 

 
 
Final Contract Cost $ 198,021.96 

 
This project was budgeted in the Community Investment Program 2019-2020 fiscal year 
budget. The project is supported by Measure C Pass through funds. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Public Utilities Department, the City Engineer, the engineering inspector, and the project 
Engineer agree that the work performed by the contractor is in accordance with the project 
plans and specifications, and has been deemed acceptable. The contractor, AJ Excavation, 
Inc. has requested final acceptance from City Council. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
1. The notice of completion will be recorded; and  

 
2. All remaining retention funds will be released 35 calendar days following recordation of 

the notice of acceptance, provided no liens have been filed.  Retention funds may be 
released within 60 days after the date of completion, provided no liens have been filed, 
with “completion” defined as the earlier of either (a) beneficial use and occupancy and 
cessation of labor, or (b) acceptance by the City Council per Public Contract Code Section 
7107(c)(2). 

 
 
Prepared by: Kevin Gross, Civil Engineer  
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH 

 

33

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



Wi
llo

w

Pe
ac

h

Clo
vis

Su
nn

ys
ide

Fo
wle

r

Ar
ms

tro
ng

Te
mp

era
nc

e

Lo
ca

n

De
 W

olf

Shepherd

Teague

Nees

Alluvial

Herndon

Sierra

Bullard

Barstow

Shaw

Gettysburg

Ashlan

Dakota

Le
on

ard

Hig
hla

nd

Mi
nn

ew
aw

a

4ATTACHMENT A
CITY LIMITS SPHERE OF INFLUENCE

VICINITY MAP

October 5, 2020 Cleveland Wardrick

CIP 18-10 Armstrong Avenue Reconstruction

34

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.

StephanieA
Typewritten Text
Prepared By: 

johna
PolyLine

johna
Callout
Project Location

iank
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services Department 

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services - Approval - Final Acceptance 
for CIP 18-13, Sunnyside Avenue Street Improvements. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Vicinity Map 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to accept the work performed as complete and authorize recording of 
the notice of completion. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This project is located on Sunnyside Avenue from SR-168 to Alluvial Avenue. The work for 
the project addressed pavement deficiencies, ADA compliance, and improved bicycle user 
safety by adding bikes lanes in each direction. The project was funded by Measure C Pass 
through funds. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Bids were received on June 16, 2020 and City Council pre-authorized the City Manager to 
award the project to the low bidder on June 15, 2020. The low bidder was Dave Christian 
Construction, Inc. The project was completed in accordance with the construction documents 
and the contractor has submitted a request for acceptance of the project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



FISCAL IMPACT 
 

1. Award $ 411,820.50 
 

2. Cost increases/decreases resulting from differences $ -10,389.90 
 between estimated quantities used for award and 
 actual quantities installed. 

 
3. Contract Change Orders           $ 5,250.00 

 
 
Final Contract Cost $ 406,680.60 
 

This project was approved in the 2019-2020 fiscal year budget and is supported by Measure 
C pass through funds. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Public Utilities Department, the City Engineer, the Engineering Inspector, and the Project 
Engineer agree that the work performed by the contractor is in accordance with the project 
plans and specifications, and has been deemed acceptable. The contractor, Dave Christian 
Construction, Inc. has requested final acceptance from City Council. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
1. The notice of completion will be recorded; and 

 
2. All remaining retention funds will be released 35 calendar days following recordation of 

the notice of acceptance, provided no liens have been filed. Retention funds may be 
released within 60 days after the date of completion, provided no liens have been filed, 
with “completion” defined as the earlier of either (a) beneficial use and occupancy and 
cessation of labor, or (b) acceptance by the City Council per Public Contract Code Section 
7107(c)(2). 

 
 
Prepared by: John Armendariz, Civil Engineer 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _AH__ 

36

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



Wi
llo

w

Pe
ac

h

Clo
vis

Su
nn

ys
ide

Fo
wle

r

Ar
ms

tro
ng

Te
mp

era
nc

e

Lo
ca

n

De
 W

olf

Shepherd

Teague

Nees

Alluvial

Herndon

Sierra

Bullard

Barstow

Shaw

Gettysburg

Ashlan

Dakota

Le
on

ard

Hig
hla

nd

Mi
nn

ew
aw

a

4ATTACHMENT A
CITY LIMITS SPHERE OF INFLUENCE

VICINITY MAP

ATTACHMENT 1

October 5, 2020 Cleveland Wardrick

CIP 18-13 Sunnyside Avenue Street Improvements

37

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.

StephanieA
Typewritten Text
Prepared By: 

johna
Callout
Project Location

johna
Line



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Police Department  

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Police – Approval – Res. 20__, Amending the 2019-20 Police 
Department Budget to reflect the award of the Edward Byrne 
Memorial Justice Assistance Grants (JAG) Program in the amount of 
$15,431. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution  
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a Resolution amending the 2020-2021 Police Department 
Budget to reflect the grant award from the Department of Justice Edward Byrne Memorial 
Justice Assistance Program in the amount of $15,431. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Clovis Police Department has been awarded the amount of $15,431 from the JAG 
Program to fund one part-time community service officer. The grant period starts October 1, 
2020 and ends September 30, 2021. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The funds are provided through the U.S. Department of Justice, Edward Byrne Memorial 
Justice Assistance Grant Program.  This program furthers the Department of Justice’s 
mission by assisting state and local efforts to prevent and/or reduce crime and violence.  
The Clovis Police Department will maintain one part-time community service officer to assist 
patrol in several functions within the Police Department. These functions could include, but 
not be limited to, patrol field work, jail duties, animal services duties in patrol, community 
events, and other duties which would prevent and reduce crime. 
 
 
 

38

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



FISCAL IMPACT 
Acceptance of this grant is not expected to have any impact on the allocation of funds in the 
city budget. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
To approve the amendment of the FY 2020-2021 Police Department Budget to reflect the 
award of Justice Assistance Grant funds in the amount of $15,431. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
After the Council approval, the 2020-2021 Police Department Annual Budget will be 
amended as described. Program objectives will begin Oct 1, 2020. 
  
Prepared by: Sandra Macy, Management Analyst  
 

Reviewed by: City Manager __AH___  

39

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR 2020-2021 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Clovis approved the 2019-2020 

Budget on May 18, 2020; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Police Department requests approval of the City Council to apply 

for and use grant funds from the Bureau of Justice Assistance Grant (JAG); and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Police Department has need for one part-time Community 

Service Officer; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the Police Department will receive JAG funds in the amount of 

$15,431 to use towards law enforcement services; and 

 

 WHEREAS IT IS AGREED, that the City Council determines that the 

expenditures are necessary. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clovis 

that the 2020-2021 Budget be amended as provided in the Attachment A of Attachment 

1 “Summary of Expenditures by Department” “Summary of Expenditures by Fund.” 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that grant funds received hereunder shall not be 

used to supplant expenditures controlled by this body. 

 

  *  *  *  *    * 

 

 The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the 

City Council of the City of Clovis held on October 5, 2020 by the following vote to wit:  

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED: October 5, 2020  

 
 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
Mayor       City Clerk 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 40

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT 
 
DEPARTMENT 
 
 POLICE   $15,431 
 TOTAL DEPARTMENT $15,431 
 
 
 
  SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY FUND 
 
 GENERAL FUND  $15,431 
 TOTAL FUND  $15,431 
 
 
All expenditures will be out of the grant budget 56300.  
 
 

ATTACHMENT A OF ATTACHMENT 1 41

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Police Department 

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Police – Approval – Res. 20__, Amending the Police Department’s 
Budget for FY 2020-2021 to reflect the award from the Office of 
Traffic Safety Selective Enforcement Traffic Program Grant in the 
amount of $75,000.00 and the Office of Traffic Safety Traffic Records 
Improvement Project in the amount of $51,800.00. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution  
2. Copy of Grant Contracts 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a Resolution amending the 2020-2021 Budget for the Police 
Department to reflect the grant awards from the Office of Traffic Safety. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Clovis Police Department has been awarded the amount of $75,000 for the Selective 
Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) and $51,800 for the Traffic Records Improvement 
Project (TRIP) from the Office of Traffic Safety.  These funds are for overtime operations 
related to traffic safety, pedestrian education, and traffic enforcement; and the 
implementation of a traffic crash reporting and records management system. The Grant 
period starts October 1, 2020 and ends September 30, 2021. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The department applied for these grants through the State of California. The STEP grant will 
fund officers’ overtime, and training to conduct DUI saturation details, warrant details, seat 
belt enforcement details, bicycle/pedestrian classroom workshops, child-passenger car seat 
details, and distracted driving enforcement operations. The OTS Traffic Records 
Improvement Project grant will allow for the purchase and implementation of a complete 

42

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



 

electronic crash reporting system, which will have the capability of exporting crash report 
records to the California Highway Patrol’s Statewide Integrated Traffic Records.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Acceptance of this grant is not expected to have any impact on the allocation of funds in the 
City budget. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
In compliance with the requirements of the Office of Traffic Safety Grant, the City Council 
must approve the acceptance of these grants and amend the Police Department budget. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
After the Council approval, the 2020-2021 Police Department Annual Budget Resolution will 
be amended as described. Grant program objectives will begin on October 1, 2020. 
 
Prepared by: Sandra Macy, Management Analyst  
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _AH__  

 

43

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



 

ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-__  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 

APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2020-2021 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Clovis approved the 2020-2021 Budget 

on May 18, 2020; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Police Department is to be awarded $126,800 from the California 

Office of Traffic Safety to fund traffic operations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Police Department has a need for enforcement, traffic safety, and 

education; and an electronic traffic records system; and 

 

 WHEREAS IT IS AGREED, that the City Council determines that the expenditures 

are necessary.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clovis 

that the 2020-2021 Budget be amended as provided in the Attachment A of Attachment 

1 “Summary of Expenditures by Department” “Summary of Expenditures by Fund.” 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that grant funds received hereunder shall not be 

used to supplant expenditures controlled by this body. 

 

*  *  *  *    * 

 

 The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the 

City Council of the City of Clovis held on October 5, 2020, by the following vote to wit:  

 

AYES:  

NOES:   

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 
DATED:  October 5, 2020 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
      Mayor       City Clerk 
 

44

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



 
 

ATTACHMENT A OF ATTACHMENT 1 

 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT 
 
DEPARTMENT 
 
 POLICE   $126,800 
 TOTAL DEPARTMENT $126,800 
 
 
  SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY FUND 
 
 GENERAL FUND  $126,800 
 TOTAL FUND  $126,800 
 
 
All expenditures will be out of the grant budget 56300.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



ATTACHMENT 2 
46

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



47

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



48

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



49

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



50

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



51

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



52

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



53

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



54

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



55

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



56

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



57

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



58

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



59

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



60

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



61

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



62

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



63

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



64

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



65

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



66

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



67

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



68

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



69

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



70

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



71

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



72

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



73

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



74

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



75

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



76

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



77

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



78

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department 

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – Res. 20-____, Amending the City’s Master 
Administrative Fee Schedule to Eliminate Clovis Transit Fares. 

Staff: Amy Hance, General Services Manager 

Recommendation: Approve  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 20-____,  
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a resolution revising the City’s Master Administrative Fee 
Schedule to eliminate Clovis Transit fares.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Staff proposes a change to the City’s Master Administrative Fee Schedule with the elimination 
of Clovis Transit bus fares for Stageline fixed-route service and Round Up paratransit service. 
Currently, Clovis Transit charges $1.25 per passenger for Stageline service, and $1.25 to 
$2.75 per passenger for Round Up service depending upon the destination. Children under 6 
years of age, adults 65 and over, and passengers with disabilities and their attendants ride for 
free.  
 
Clovis Transit receives annual Transit Development Act (TDA) Funding allocations through 
two separate programs: State Transit Assistance (STA) and Local Transit Funding (LTF). STA 
is funded through a statewide excise tax on diesel fuel and LTF funding comes from a statewide 
retail sales tax allocation. As an efficiency metric, TDA requires Clovis Transit to maintain a 
farebox ratio recovery formula which is a set percentage of total operation costs of the service. 
The Stageline bus service is required to maintain a 20% farebox recovery ratio, and Round Up 
bus service has a 10% farebox recovery ratio requirement. Historically, Clovis Transit has 
never met the required TDA farebox recovery ratio and has used local Measure C funds to 
supplement farebox revenue to meet the State requirement.  

79

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



Currently, the revenue collected from fares represents between 2% - 4% of the operational 
costs associated with providing public transit services. The process to collect, count, and 
secure the cash requires multiple employees over several days, and over 1,100 work hours 
each year. This is equivalent to at least one part-time employee. In addition, bus pass sales, 
contract maintenance for student fares with local educational institutions and regional service 
centers, and required external revenue tracking increases the time spent managing the 
revenue. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Clovis has been operating transit services since July, 1980. Originally offered as 
demand-responsive service, the operation progressed through different iterations until 1999 
when City staff took over all operations and Clovis Transit was created. Since then, the City 
has offered two forms of public transit: fixed-route bus service known as Stageline, and 
paratransit service known as Round Up. Throughout its history, Clovis Transit has charged a 
fare for each passenger and the revenue from the farebox was used to satisfy the required 
TDA farebox ratio.  
 
Clovis Transit uses a portion of its annual allocation of Measure C to meet the required TDA 
farebox ratio. Without Measure C, Clovis Transit Stageline fares would escalate from $1.25 to 
approximately $9.00 per ride to meet the farebox ratio requirements. In 2011, the Clovis City 
Council voted to include those 65 years of age and older to the existing free rides categories 
which includes children younger than 6 (with a fare-paying adult) and those with disabilities. 
Approximately 60% of bus riders do not pay a fare and until recently, Clovis Transit had a 
contract with State Center Community College and California State University Fresno to 
provide bus fare at a discounted rate.  
 
Public transit is an important component of a thriving community and provides an avenue for 
people to pursue educational opportunities, gain access to health care, and travel to 
employment centers. It also has a direct impact on the health of the residents by decreasing 
greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) through the reduction in vehicles on the roadway. In 2019, 
the City of Clovis completed the federally required Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing 
Choice. This study identified that the City’s transit system is critical to low-income households 
accessing jobs, services, and housing. The study listed a goal to improve accessibility to the 
transit system (5.1).  Zero-fare transit services would remove any financial barrier experienced 
by low-income individuals and families that rely on public transit to lead their lives. According 
to the American Community Survey, 20% of Clovis residents have an income level below 150% 
of poverty level, and those residents without access to a vehicle are more likely to be 
depending on transit.  

 
In FY 2019-2020, Clovis Transit used grant funding to provide zero-fare rides during August, 
September, and October on Stageline and Round Up bus services. Ridership increased an 
average of 26% over all three months, and the highest monthly increase was 37%. The 
program clearly demonstrated that when bus fares are eliminated, transit becomes a more 
attractive option for our citizens.  

 

80

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



In early April of 2020, bus fares were eliminated in response to the coronavirus pandemic. This 
was done for two reasons:  to provide a safer environment for the bus operators by eliminating 
the need to handle cash, and to provide some economic relief to the community during the 
shut-down. As schools and work sites moved to a virtual environment, ridership in April, May, 
and June was at an historic low. During the first quarter of FY 2020-2021, ridership remains 
down about 30% on Stageline and 50% on Round Up, but as schools start to re-open, ridership 
will increase and passengers will again use the bus to travel. 
 
In 2018, the California State Legislature requested the California Transit Association to 
assemble a task force to study the challenges experienced by many public transit operators in 
attaining the required farebox ratio. The task force began its work and just prior to the COVID-
19 pandemic, published a set of draft recommendations which included development of 
alternative efficiency standards that would assist transit operators in attracting passengers. 
While the task force group is still meeting about possible revisions to the TDA farebox 
requirement, Assembly Bill 90 was passed in June 2020, which eliminates the farebox ratio 
efficiency requirement for FY 2019-2020 and FY 2020-2021 due to the pandemic. For the 
legislature to suspend the farebox ratio garners potential for future revisions or elimination of 
the farebox recovery ratio requirement under the TDA. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Currently, Clovis Transit uses a portion of the annual Measure C allocation to supplement fare 
revenue and meet the minimum farebox ratio. However, since the requirement is suspended 
for FY 2019-2020 and FY 2020-2021, Measure C funds will be utilized for overall operations 
instead of supplementing farebox recovery. If Clovis Transit fares are eliminated, a larger 
amount of Measure C, approximately $150,000, would be necessary to meet farebox 
requirements starting in FY 2021-2022, unless the legislature removes or revises the 
requirement. This additional Measure C allocation toward fares would not impact levels of 
service. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Zero-fare bus rides remove a financial barrier for low-income individuals and families to access 
public transportation. The tasks associated with the oversight, management, and security of 
bus fares are onerous considering the funds collected.  Zero-fares have been demonstrated to 
increase ridership, which has a direct impact on greenhouse gas emission reductions.   
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
The annual Measure C claim will be adjusted appropriately to satisfy the required TDA farebox 
revenue ratio.  

 
Prepared by: Amy Hance, General Services Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _LS__   

81

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 20-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING CHANGES TO THE MASTER ADMINISTRATIVE FEE SCHEDULE 

 

 

WHEREAS, Clovis Transit has demonstrated an increase in ridership when transit fares 
are eliminated; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes the value of public transit in the mitigation of greenhouse 
gas emissions and the pursuit of cleaner air in the valley; and 

 
WHEREAS, the elimination of transit fares will remove a financial burden from low income 

individuals and families traveling to work sites, healthcare facilities, and educational institutions; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Clovis Transit will utilize a portion of its annual Measure C allocation to meet 

the required Transportation Development Act farebox revenue recovery ratio. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis does hereby authorize 
changes to the Master Administrative Fee Schedule as it relates to the General Services 
Department Transit Fares as described in Attachment A of Attachment 1.  
 

*   *  *  *    * 
 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Clovis held on October 5, 2020 by the following vote, to wit. 
 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 
 
 

82

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



MASTER ADMINISTRATIVE FEE SCHEDULE  

Effective Date: October 5, 2020 
 

ATTACHMENT A of ATTACHMENT 1 

* Insert arrow(s) to indicate change(s)  

 

Description Fee 

Standard Photocopying for Black and White (per page – standard 8 ½ x 11 $.10 

Standard Photocopying for Color (per page– standard 8 ½ x 11) $.15 

Blue Line Map 

 24x36 $4.00 

 30 x 48 $5.00 

 Each successive sheet $2.50 

Map of Developable Areas $30.00 

Standard Specifications (per set) $20.00 

Research Fee (1/2 hr. minimum) $45.00/hr 

Facility Use Permit (minimum) $100.00 

Lobbyist Registration (annual)    $25.00 

Amendment to Lobbyist Registration    $10.00 

Annual Financial Report $20.00 

Annual Budget $20.00 

Copy of Clovis Municipal Code (full copy) $125.00 

Copy of Clovis Municipal Code Supplements $20.00 

Video Tape Copy $25.00 

Reproduction of Photographs $40.00 

Administrative Charge pertaining to Administrative Citations $50.00 

 

Park Facility Reservation Fees Half day rate Full day rate 

 Picnic sites with 4 or fewer tables $41.00 $82.00 

 Picnic sites with 5 or more tables $53.00 $106.00 

 

Hydrant Water   Metered 

 First 30 days, plus 5,000 gallons $20.00 

 Per 1,000 gallons over 5,000 gallons  $1.00 

 Late Return Charge - Per day $15.00 

 Lost or stolen meter $500.00 

 

General Services Department 

Community Services Division 

Transit Section 

 Stageline Service 

 General Public (age 6-64) (per one-way trip) Free 

 Seniors age 65 and over with I.D. (per one-way trip)  Free 

 Persons with disability with proof of disability (per one-way trip)  Free 

 Attendant to assist a person with a disability (one attendant per disabled person) Free 

 Children under age 6 with fare paying adult (up to 4 children)  Free 

 10-ride pass   $11.50 

 FAX Metro Pass – Valid 31-days from first use $48.00 

 Roundup Service (Disabled residents of Clovis)  

 Disabled Passenger Trip  Free 

 Trolley Fee Schedule 

83

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 

 

 Non Holiday Hourly Rate (minimum of two hours)  $125.00 

 Holiday Hourly Rate (all holidays recognized by the City of Clovis, minimum of two hours)    $140.00 

 Reduced hourly rate after four hours at full rate    $75.00 

 Wait time (vehicle not in motion) after two hours at full rate  $50.00 

 Clean-up of any bodily fluid spills on a per incident basis $100.00 

Senior Services Section 

 Banquet Hall Rental       $900.00 for first 5 hours; $100.00 each additional hour 

 Banquet Hall Rental (non-profit rate)  $100.00 per hour 

 Classroom Rental    $375.00 for first 5 hours; $50.00 each additional hour 

 Classroom Rental (non-profit rate) $50.00 per hour 

 Senior Center Classes… $1.00 to $5.00 per day per activity 

 Senior Center Class Registration Free to $35.00 per 8-week session 

 Ceramic Firing Fee (one class) $15.00 per month 

 Ceramic Firing Fee (two or more classes) $20.00 per month 

 Senior Trips and Tours $5.00 administrative fee plus actual activity cost 

 Notary Public Service $5.00 

 Event Table Sponsorship $75.00 to $150.00 

 

Recreation Section 

 Batting Range Fees $2.00-$3.00 for 25 pitches, exclusive of special promotions 

 Youth Program Fees Fee Range:  Free to $90.00 per program 

 Youth Leagues and Tournaments… Fee Range: $85.00 to $150.00 

 Adult Program Fees Fee Range: $5.00 to $150.00 per program 

 Adult Leagues and Tournaments Fee Range: $50.00 to $500.00 

 Special Events and Camps… Fee Range: Free to $250.00 per event/camp 

 Recreation Facility Reservations (north portion of building) Fee Range: $50.00 to $100.00 

 Recreation Facility Reservations (south portion of building) Fee Range: $50.00 to $100.00 

 Sponsorship Banners… $150.00 to $2,000.00 

 Softball/baseball/soccer field at Bicentennial Park: Clovis Resident $25.00 per hour per field 

 Softball/baseball/soccer field at Bicentennial Park: Non-Clovis Resident $35.00 per hour per field 

 Field lighting $15.00 per hour 

 Snack bar rental (in conjunction with other park facility rental) $100.00 

 

Police Department Fees 

 Entertainment Permit Fees 

 Application Fee $500.00 

 Annual Permits 

 Heavy Use (annual) $1,000.00 per year 

 Medium Use (annual)… $500.00 per year 

 Light Use (annual)… $250.00 per year 

 Single Event Permit $250.00 

 Appeal Fees 

 Heavy Use (per appeal) $250.00 per appeal 

 Medium Use (per appeal) $125.00 per appeal 

 Light Use (per appeal) $60.00 per appeal 

 Other Fees 

 Copy of Police Report $5.00 

 Fingerprinting (Clovis residents or works in Clovis only), per card $10.00 

84

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 

 

 ABC License Review. $200.00 

 ABC Permit - Special Event Alcohol Permit: Profit $22.00 

 ABC Permit - Special Event Alcohol Permit: Non Profit No Charge 

 Local Background Check $40.00 

 Audio Dispatch Recording (with case # and time of call) $39.00 

 Audio/ Video Dispatch Recording (with name only) single camera view and time increment $68.00 

 Audio/ Video Dispatch Recording (involving staff time up to 1.5 hrs) $247.00 

 Audio or Video Dispatch Recording (involving staff time of 1.5 hrs+) $425.00 

 Card Room Permit (includes fingerprinting) $258.00 

 Card Room Permit Renewal (includes fingerprinting) $228.00 

 Production of Records - Video Tapes, CD's, DVD’s $54.00 

 Reproduction of Photographs (Digital) $40.00 

 Reproduction of Photographs (35 mm)… $142.00 

 Report - Discovery (Reports or Audio or Video) $170.00 

 Second Hand Dealer License $44.00 

 Vehicle Impound Release $206.00 

 Per Tow Administration Fee $40.00 

 Gun Storage - Clovis Resident $55.00 First Gun $35 Each Additional Gun $55.00 

 Gun Storage - Non-Clovis Resident $75.00 First Gun $35 Each Additional Gun $75.00 

 Massage Therapist Permit Application Fee $250.00 

 Shopping Cart Pick Up Fee $25.00 

 Shopping Cart Daily Storage Fee $5.00 

 False Alarms 

 False Alarms, first 2 alarms No Charge 

 False Alarms, 3 – 5 alarms $100.00 each 

 False Alarms, 6 or more $250.00 each 

 Animal Services Fees 

 Dog License (Unaltered) 

 One year $25.00 

 2years $50.00 

 3 years $75.00 

 Replacement Tag $1.00 

 Dog and Vietnamese pot bellied pig License (Spayed or neutered or owned by Senior Citizen) 

 One year $5.00 

 2 years $10.00 

 3 years $15.00 

 

Additional Animal Fees  

Impound Fees 

Type 1st Time 2nd Time 3rd & Subsequent 

Altered dog with license Free* $35.00* $65.00* 

Unaltered dog with license Free* & $35 State $60.00* & $50 State $85.00* & $100 State 

Altered dog – no license $35.00* $60.00* $85.00* 

Unaltered dog – no license $35.00* & $35 State $60.00* & $50 State $85.00* & $100 State 

Altered Cat Free * $30.00* $30* 

Unaltered Cat Free* & $35 State $25.00 * & $50 State $35.00 * & $100 State 

Other animals Free* $30.00* $55.00* 

Animal returned to owner by 

Field Officer 
$65.00* $65.00* $65.00* 

85

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 

 

*plus $15.00 per day board 

 

Other Animal Shelter Fees 

 Cat trap $60.00 deposit 

 Skunk trap… $100.00 deposit 

 Large Animal Trap Deposit $100.00 

 Owner surrendered altered dog $20.00 

 Owner surrendered unaltered dog $30.00 

 Owner surrendered altered cat $15.00 

 Owner surrendered unaltered cat $20.00 

 Owner surrendered litter $25.00 

 Owner surrendered Pocket Pets (hamster, mice guinea pig, etc) $5.00 

 Dog/cat euthanasia $100.00 

 Dead animal disposal (under 10 pounds) $10.00 

 Dead animal disposal (over 10 pounds) $20.00 

 Pick-up fee (surrender fee separate) $65.00 

 Dog Adoption $150.00 

 Transfer Dog License $5.00 

 Dog License Late Fee $10.00 

 Cat Adoption $75.00 

 Quarantined Animals – Daily board $25.00 

 After Hour Service $50.00 

 Dangerous and Vicious Animal Registration $100.00 

 Spay and Neuter Deposit $100.00 

 Obedience Training Deposit $100.00 

 

Fire Department Fees 

 Front Counter Fees Rate 

 Fire Investigation Report and Photos  (62000-46310) $159 

 

 Construction Permits  (62000-46001) Rate 

 Underground $496 

 Overhead (Up to 20 heads) $199 

 Overhead (21 – 50 heads) $347 

 Overhead (each additional 50 heads after 51+) $264 

 Fire Pump $562 

 Fire Standpipes (per standpipe) $363 

 Fire Alarm (Base Fee) $325 

 Fire Alarm (Per 25 Devices) $7/per additional device 

 Fire Sprinkler System Alarms $165 

 5yr Sprinkler System Certification (Compliant) $0 

 5yr Sprinkler System Certification (non-Compliant) $363 

 Fire Suppression Hood System $363 

 LP Gas $231 

 Above Ground Tank Installation $297 

 Plan Review Re-submittal (Ea. Additional 1/2 hour) $66 

 Re- Inspection Fee (Ea. Additional 1/2 hour) $99 

 Expedited Plan Review $132/hr. 

86

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 

 

 Investigation Fee for Work Started Without Permits is the Total Cost of the Construction Permit 

Fee Doubled. 
$661 

 

Fireworks Fees  (62000-46001) 

Fireworks Standby / Special Events Code Enforcement   Hourly Rate 

 Fireworks Booth   $300 

 Fireworks Shoot/Display (1 Prevention Unit; 3-hour minimum) $132/hr. 

 Fireworks Base Fee for 1/2 hour Plan Review, One (1) Inspection and Permit $132 

 Each Additional Plan Review Per 1/2 hour $66 

 Each Additional Inspection Per 1/2 hour $66 

 Prevention Staff (1 unit) (3 hour minimum) $132/hr. 

 

Annual Occupancy Fire and Life Safety Inspections (3rd Visit Non-Compliant) Rate 

Annual Inspection - (Occupancy type:  B, F, M, S) Factory/Industrial, Retail, Business/Office, except 

for combustible dust producing operations and repair garages. (62000-46001) 

 

Up to 5,000 sq. ft. $496 

5,001 - 40,000 sq. ft. $535 

40,001 sq. ft. and Above $958 

  

  

Annual Occupancy Fire and Life Safety Inspections  (3rd Visit Non-Compliant; Schools 1st Visit)  

(62000-46001) 
Rate 

Annual Inspection - (Occupancy type: A, E) Assembly (Theatre, Churches, Auditorium, Restaurant), 

Education (any school), Excessive Hazardous Material - Welding, Open - flame, High Hazard Storage:  

 

Up to 5,000 sq. ft. $377 

5,001 - 20,000 sq. ft. $727 

20,001 sq. ft. and Above $1,190 

 

Annual Occupancy Fire and Life Safety Inspection (3rd Visit Non-Compliant)            (62000-

46001) 
Rate 

Annual Inspection - (Occupancy type: H) Excessive Hazardous Material - Welding, Open - flame, High 

Hazard Storage.   

 

Up to 5,000 sq. ft. $297 

5,001+. $694 

 

Annual Occupancy Fire and Life Safety Inspections                                                          (Hospitals 

and Fire Clearances 1st Visit)  (62000-46001) 
Rate 

Annual Inspection - (Occupancy type: I)* Hospitals, nursing homes with medical care, prisons and 

mental facilities.   

 

Hospitals $3,998 

Other I Occupancies $430 

Fire Clearances $231 

 

Annual Occupancy Fire and Life Safety Inspections (1st Visit )  (62000-46001) Rate 

Annual Inspection / each per year - Occupancy type R-1 (Hotels/Motels)  

3 – 19 units $297 

20 – 49 units $430 

50 + units $562 

 

87

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 

 

 
 
 

Annual Occupancy Fire and Life Safety Inspections (1st Visit )  (62000-46001) Rate 

Annual Inspection / each per year - Occupancy type R-2 (Apartments)  

3 – 19 units $231 

20 – 49 units $363 

50 + units $430 

 

Residential Care Facilities Pre-Inspection  (62000-46001) Rate 

6 or less clients $363 

7 or more clients $694 

 

Fire Suppression Hood System – Existing  (62000-46001) Rate 

Compliant $0 

Non-Compliant (2nd visit) $69 

 

Operational Permits (1-Day Event)  (62000-46001) Rate 

Base Fee for 1/2 hour Plan Review and One (1) Inspection $215 

Each Additional Plan Review Per 1/2 hour $66 

Each Additional Inspection Per 1/2 hour $66 

 

False Alarm Response  (62000-46001) Hourly Rate 

Prevention (1 unit) $165 

Suppression (1 BC unit) $316 

 

 

Plan Review  (62000-46001) Rate 

Plan Review per ½ hours (1/2 hour minimum) $66 

Inspection $66 

 

Miscellaneous Fees  (62000-46001) Rate 

Emergency Response – Admin (plus equipment) $45 

HazMat Response – Admin (plus equipment) $45 

Electronic Gate $363 

Firefighter Standby Fee $586 

 

88

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Fire Department 

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – Res. 20-___, Accepting the Staffing for Adequate 
Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant award in the amount of 
$3,989,655 to staff nine (9) firefighters for a period of three (3) years and 
amending the 2020 – 2021 FY City Budget and Position Allocation for 
the required additional Fire Personnel. 

Staff: John Binaski, Fire Chief 

Recommendation: Approve 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 20 -___ 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to accept the Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 
(SAFER) Grant in the amount of $3,989,655 to staff nine (9) firefighters for a period of three 
(3) years and amend the 2020-2021 FY Fire Department Budget and Position Allocation to 
reflect the additional firefighter positions funded by the grant. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Clovis Fire Department applied for the Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency 
Response (SAFER) grant to fully fund nine (9) firefighter positions across three (3) shifts in 
preparation for opening Fire Station 6 to serve the southeast growth area of Loma Vista. The 
grant fully funds the positions for a total of three (3) years. During the grant performance 
period we will be prohibited from laying off any firefighters and funds cannot be used to fund 
overtime. Commitment of the policy group, City Council, is required in order to accept the 
award. There are costs associated with staffing our 6th fire company that are not covered by 
this grant award. The SAFER Grant will fund nine (9) firefighters for three (3) years, but this 
will not meet the proper apparatus staffing requirements as outlined in the current MOU with 
the Clovis Firefighters Association (CFFA). Meeting industry best practices and the CFFA 
MOU will require the Department to add three (3) fire captains and three (3) fire engineer 
positions to our current Position Allocation Plan. 

89

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



BACKGROUND 
In March of 2020, the Fire Department applied to the U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
for the Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) grant to fund nine (9) 
firefighter positions. The goal of SAFER Grant program is to maintain local fire departments’ 
ability to comply with staffing, response, and operational standards established by the 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) and the Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (OSHA). Ultimately, SAFER grantees should achieve more efficient 
responses and a safer incident scene; thereby ensuring communities have improved 
protection from fire and fire-related hazards.   
 
In the City of Clovis, the southeast growth area of Loma Vista has seen significant growth, 
which has placed additional service demands on our five (5) existing fire stations. As noted 
in the chart below, the number of housing units, calls for service, and response time metrics 
for that area have grown steadily over the past 5 years. 
 

  2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Single Family Homes 2,153 2,791 3,349 5,059 7,474 

Calls for Service 278 326 371 410 731 

Total Response Time 7:49 8:04 9:46 9:48 10:17 

 
During this period, the Clovis Fire Department has continually monitored these data points 
to properly time the coordination of purchasing the land, designing of the fire station, 
acquiring the apparatus, building the fire station, and staffing to maintain adopted service 
levels.     
 
On Wednesday, September 16, 2020, we received notice from FEMA that our grant 
application was approved in the amount of $3,989,655. For this year, SAFER grant guidelines 
were amended significantly to help communities facing staffing challenges due to COVID-19 
and the local economic impacts resulting from the protracted pandemic. SAFER performance 
elements include: 
1. Remove the local cost-share requirement. SAFER now fully funds total employee 
compensation including benefits for the three year performance period. 
2. During the grant performance period which runs until March 9, 2024, CFD will be 
prohibited from laying off any firefighters. 
3. The grant cannot be used to fund overtime outside of the usual costs under the 
Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). 
4. Allowance for an attrition waiver in the event that an agency experiences staff 
reductions via retirement resulting in reduced staffing beyond what the grant was intended 
to achieve. 
 
If accepted, Clovis Fire will have the necessary staffing for a 6th company. The City is in the 
final plan check review process for the proposed Fire Station 6. Fire Station 6 is estimated to 

90

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



be completed by December 2021 with a January 2022 opening. In the meantime, to help 
improve response times in the southeast growth area and throughout Clovis, the addition of 
a 6th fire company will be staffed at Station 5 or Station 1. This will be the first Fire 
Department expansion since 2004 when Station 5 was opened.   
 
Having reviewed the City’s budget, five-year forecast, and our performance data, it is 
appropriate that Council approve our SAFER award. With the grant performance period 
starting March 10, 2021, we have developed an outline to recruit, train, promote, and hire 
personnel within the prescribed period with the goal of hiring the nine (9) firefighters by April 
5, 2021. This will then enable the Fire Department to place a 6th company into service 
effective June 16, 2021. The new personnel and apparatus will temporarily be housed at 
either Station 5 or Station 1 until Fire Station 6 is completed in approximately January 2022.  
As our staffing provides for a Captain, Engineer, and Firefighter at each station per shift, 
there will be a total salary and benefit increase of approximately $140,000 per year for the 
three-year grant period.   
 
Since the grant will reimburse the City for the salary and benefit cost of the nine (9) firefighters 
after the completion of each quarter it will require the City to spend the initial funds before 
being reimbursed. For the final quarter of fiscal year 2020-2021, a budget and position 
allocation amendment is required as outlined in Attachments A and B. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
By accepting the SAFER award, FEMA will reimburse the City of Clovis $3,989,655 over a 
three-year grant period of March 10, 2021 – March 9, 2024. The fiscal impact to 2020-2021 
FY is $365,000 due to the timing of the quarterly reimbursement period that will not be 
reimbursed until 2021-2022 FY. In addition, the City will be required to increase the Fire 
Department budget for the grant period to make up the difference between the salary and 
benefit costs of a firefighter as compared to the required three (3) fire captains and three (3) 
fire engineers. It is estimated that this cost difference will be approximately $140,000 per 
year. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
SAFER provides a cost-effective means of staffing Station 6 to meet adopted service levels 
in the southeast growth area of Loma Vista and throughout the community. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
1. Clovis Fire Department will inform FEMA of Council acceptance of SAFER.   
2. The Clovis Fire Department will hire nine (9) firefighters. 
3. The Clovis Fire Department will place its sixth fire company in service in June 2021. 
 
Prepared by: John Binaski, Fire Chief 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH 

91

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 20-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS ACCEPTING THE 
STAFFING FOR ADEQUATE FIRE AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE (SAFER) GRANT 

AWARD AND APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 2020-2021 FY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
BUDGET AND POSITION ALLOCATION PLAN 

 
 

WHEREAS, the 2020-2021 FY Budget and Position Allocation for the Fire Department was 

approved as part of the City budget adoption process on June 1, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a result of the 2019 SAFER Grant award, the staffing needs for the Fire 

Department requires amendment to add three (3) additional Fire Captains, three (3) additional 

Fire Engineers, and three (3) additional Firefighters; and 

 

WHEREAS, amending the City’s adopted 2020-2021 FY City Budget and Position 

Allocation Plan requires City Council authorization. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis shall amend the 2020-

2021 FY City Budget and Position Allocation Plan for the Fire Department as noted in 

Attachments A and B. 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on _________, 2020 by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 

92

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

 

 

 
SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT  

2020-2021 
 
 Department 
 Fire (61000) $          365,000 
 Total $          365,000 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY FUND  
2020-2021 

 
 Fund 
 General  $          365,000 
 Total $          365,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A OF ATTACHMENT 1 
93

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

 

 

 
POSITION ALLOCATION ADJUSTMENT BY DEPARTMENT 

2020-2021 FY 
 
DEPARTMENT     NUMBER OF POSITIONS 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Fire  

 Add:  Fire Captain    3.0 

   Fire Engineer   3.0 

   Firefighter    3.0 

 

ATTACHMENT B OF ATTACHMENT 1 
94

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Fire Department 

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – Res. 20-____, Accepting the Assistance to 
Firefighter Grant (AFG) and amending the 2020-2021 FY City Budget to 
reflect $144,147.27 in grant funding awarded to funding the purchase of 
Source Capture Extraction Systems (SCES) for City fire stations. 

Staff: John Binaski, Fire Chief 

Recommendation: Approve 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 20-___ 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a resolution accepting the AFG grant and amending the 2020-
2021 City Budget to reflect the AFG grant funding for the purchase of a specialty exhaust 
system for the City fire stations.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Clovis Fire Department applied for the Assistance to Firefighter Grant (AFG) to fund 
Source Capture Exhaust Extraction Systems (SCES) that remove the harmful vehicle exhaust 
particulate matter from the apparatus bay areas. Parts are no longer available for the 15 year 
old systems currently installed in the fire stations and attempts to fabricate have been 
unsuccessful to keep them operational and up to Cal OSHA standards. In order to prevent Fire 
Department staff from exposure to carcinogens, the City needs to update the equipment. In 
order to maintain firefighter health and safety and meet Cal OSHA standards, AFG funding 
was sought to replace the extraction systems at the fire stations. There is a cost share 
commitment of $14,414.73 which is currently budgeted in the 2020-2021 FY Budget for 
General Government Facilities. Commitment of the policy group, City Council, is required in 
order to accept the award. 

 
 
 

95

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



BACKGROUND 
In March of 2020, we applied to the U.S. Department of Homeland Security for the Staffing 
for AFG grant to fund Source Capture Extraction Systems (SCES) for City fire stations. The 
goal of AFG awards is to enhance the safety of the public and firefighters with respect to fire 
and fire-related hazards. The AFG Program accomplishes this by providing financial 
assistance directly to eligible fire departments, non-affiliated emergency medical service 
(EMS) organizations, and State Fire Training Academies (SFTA) for critical training and 
equipment.   
   
Currently Fire Personnel are exposed to exhaustion daily from the Department running over 
10,500 calls for service annually and other daily duties that require personnel to leave and 
return to the station. Vehicle exhaust emissions generate cancer causing emissions. These 
emissions occur during startup, return to quarters, and routine pump testing in our facilities. 
 
The current exhaust extraction systems were purchased and installed approximately 15 
years ago, an example of CFD’S effort to be at the forefront of cancer prevention and 
firefighter health and safety. Over time, the systems have suffered wear and tear and they 
have been cost prohibitive to maintain or unable to repair due to the unavailability of parts.  
Due to financial constraints over the past years, we have not been able to secure funding to 
replace the systems. 
 
Funding through AFG will allow us to eliminate this hazardous exposure and comply with 
NFPA 1500, Section A.9.1.6. Current changes in health and safety standards have clearly 
identified that vehicle exhaust emissions, in particular, whole diesel exhaust (PM10) is a 
cancer causing substance.  Agencies documenting the hazards of diesel exhaust include but 
are not limited to: National Institute of Occupational Safety & Health (NIOSH), American 
Conference of General Industrial Hygienists (ACGIH), U.S. Department of Health (USDOH), 
and Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA). 
 
With this grant, Clovis Fire will be implementing a key element identified by our Cancer 
Prevention Committee to improve health and safety. A collaborative effort between labor and 
management, the Committee determined four links in the cancer prevention chain to enhance 
firefighter safety: personal protective equipment (PPE), policies and procedures, apparatus, 
and facilities resulting in numerous cost-effective changes. PPE changes included phasing 
in a second set of turnouts for each personnel and the hood swap out procedure at the fire 
scene. Policy and procedure changes include: field decontamination after structure fires 
including the purchase of kits (buckets, brushes, hose and nozzles) for each engine, PPE 
removal and bagging at scenes, wipes for personnel on scene, personnel showering 
immediately after an incident, and a PVC decontamination shower at our training center for 
live fire drills. Apparatus changes include: apparatus cab decontaminating procedures and 
clean cab compartments on new apparatus.  
 
The proposed system has been independently tested and verified to be capable of capturing 
100% of the vehicle exhausts emissions at the point of generation (tailpipe) by making an 
airtight seal to the tailpipe of our apparatus. This fulfills the current NFPA 1500 – 2002 Edition 

96

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



requirement “the need for elimination and containment of all vehicle exhaust emissions to a 
level of no less than 100% effective capture.”  
 
Having reviewed the City’s budget, five-year forecast and occupational health/safety 
requirements of the aforementioned agencies, it is appropriate that Council approve our AFG 
award and budget amendment.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Accepting the AFG award will increase the FY 2020-2021 CIP-General Government Facilities 
budget by $144,147.27. Matching funds of $14,414.73 will be used from within the existing 
CIP-General Government Facilities budget allocation for equipment. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
AFG provides a cost effective means to replace obsolete equipment, bring our fire stations 
into compliance with NFPA and Cal-OSHA requirements, and improve the health/safety of 
our fire personnel. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Clovis Fire Department will inform FEMA of Council acceptance of AFG. Staff will proceed to 
process purchase requests and order approved equipment in accordance with grant 
guidelines. 
 
Prepared by: John Binaski, Fire Chief 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

97

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 20-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS ACCEPTING THE 
ASSISTANCE FOR FIREFIGHTERS GRANT (AFG) AND 

APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE 2020-2021 BUDGET 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the 2020-2021 Budget on June 1, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, the budget for the Fire Department did not include revenues associated with 

the Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Fire Department is responsible for providing public safety utilizing the 

most effective and cost efficient tools possible; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Fire Department successfully competed for 2019 AFG funds to secure 

the necessary equipment to overhaul end-of-life vehicle emission systems; and  

 

WHEREAS, the purchase expenses incurred by the City to install Source Capture 

Extrication Systems (SCES) for the City fire stations will be paid by the AFG Program at a 

rate of $144,147.27; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City can commit a $14,414.73 match of the total project to meet the 

obligations of the grant award. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis approve that the 2020-

2021 Budget be amended as provided in Attachment A. 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on _________, 2020 by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 1 
98

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



 

 

 

 
SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT  

2020-2021 
 
 Department 
 General Government Facilities $          144,147 
 Total $          144,147 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY FUND  
2020-2021 

 

Fund 
 General $          144,147 
 Total $          144,147 
 
 
 

 
SUMMARY OF REVENUES BY DEPARTMENT  

2020-2021 
 
 Department 
 General Government Facilities $          144,147 
 Total $          144,147 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF REVENUES BY FUND  
2020-2021 

 

Fund 
 General $          144,147 
 Total $          144,147 

 
 

ATTACHMENT A OF ATTACHMENT 1 99

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



 

- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Fire Department 

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – Various Actions Associated with the Acquisition of 
Fire Apparatus.  

a. Consider Approval – Waive the City’s formal bidding requirements and 
authorize the sole-source purchase of one Pierce Triple Combination 
Pumper Fire Apparatus from Golden State Fire Apparatus in 
Sacramento, CA for a total purchase price of $748,277.25. 

b. Consider Approval – Res. 20-___, Amend the Public Utilities 
Department and General Services budget to provide funding for the 
purchase of one Pierce Triple Combination Pumper Fire Apparatus. 

Staff: John Binaski, Fire Chief 

Recommendation: Approve  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 20-___ 
2. Quote from Golden State Apparatus 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the waiving of the City's formal bidding requirements and authorize the sole- 
source purchase of one Pierce Triple Combination Pumper Fire Apparatus for the amount 
of $748,277.25 and adjust the 2020-2021 Public Utilities and General Services budgets to 
reflect the purchase. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Staff requests City Council approve the sole-source purchase of one 2021 Pierce Triple 
Combination Pumper Fire Apparatus as per the Clovis Fire Department’s apparatus 
specifications. The new fire engine will be placed in service at the new Fire Station 6 
located in the Loma Vista Community of Clovis and funding will come from Developer 

100

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.



Impact Fees. To attain the pre-payment discount pricing for the new fire engine, the City 
will purchase the fire engine and related equipment.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Clovis Fire Department currently staffs a fleet four (4) frontline fire engines and one (1) fire 
truck. This purchase will add a 5th frontline fire engine into our daily staffing. Each 
apparatus has a reserve apparatus to serve when the primary apparatus is out-of-service 
for maintenance or repair. This is compliant with national standards for fire service fleets.     
 
Our standard for fleet replacement, which was adopted by the City of Clovis in the mid-
1990’s and incorporated into the Fire Department’s accreditation plan approved by the 
Center for Public Safety Excellence, is to use apparatus for twelve to fourteen years as 
frontline service apparatus and then place them in reserve for approximately six to eight 
years, in order to receive a twenty year service life.  
 
The manufacturer of this apparatus, Pierce, remains consistent with the standard the 
Department established in 1996. Since that time we have continued our efforts to 
standardize all of the new fire apparatus chassis, engines, transmissions, and main fire 
pumps. This approach has served to increase firefighter safety, reduce training time, and 
reduce fleet maintenance costs and required parts inventory.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Purchase via sole-source is based on the characteristics of the apparatus. This purchase 
will provide standardization of chassis, which allows for more efficient training and reduces 
fleet maintenance and inventory costs. This sole-source purchase provides for a single 
source of warranty work and part ordering. 
 
Base Price Cost Comparison: The Revised Base Price below does include applicable pre-
payment discounts and sales tax as shown on price quote, Attachment 2. The total 
purchase price for the engine is $748,277.25, saving the City $34,440.75 on the vehicle 
purchase price by using the Fire Rescue GPO bid pricing and $26,575.00 for the full pre-
payment at time of order.   

 
The requested budget amendment to the Public Utilities and General Services budgets 
will provide $748,277.25 for the purchase of the Pierce Triple Combination Pumper Fire 
Apparatus and $96,722.75 for the necessary tools and equipment to place the apparatus 
in service. Certain items, like 20 year-old fire hose and outdated tools currently in service, 
need to be replaced to ensure this apparatus meets the Clovis Fire Department’s 
standardized equipment inventory, CPSE Accreditation, and NFPA safety standards. 
Delivery of the apparatus is typically within 300 to 365 calendar days after execution and 
acceptance of a contract or purchase order. In total the purchase price for one fire engine 
from Golden State Fire Apparatus is $748,277.25 and the required equipment is 
$96,722.75. 
 
 
 

101

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.



REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The fire engine being purchased will be utilized for the new Fire Station 6 within the Loma 
Vista community of Clovis scheduled to open January 2022. In the period between the 
delivery of the new engine and the opening of Fire Station 6, the engine will be staffed by 
personnel hired from the SAFER grant. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 

 
1.  Finalize purchase contract with Pierce and order apparatus. 
2.  Upon delivery conduct an extensive apparatus acceptance test.  
3.  Order, receive, and mount all equipment on apparatus as needed. 
4.  Conduct an orientation of the apparatus before placing the unit in-service. 

 
Prepared by: Jim Damico, Battalion Chief 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

102

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.



 

 

RESOLUTION 20-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING THE AMENDMENT OF 2020-2021 FY BUDGET AND AUTHORIZING THE 

CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the 2020-2021 FY budget on June 1, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Fire Department has a need for one Triple Combination pumper fire 

engine to service the City of Clovis; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Fire Department is responsible for providing public safety utilizing the most 

effective and cost efficient tools possible; and 

 

WHEREAS, the fire engine will cost $748,277.25 and the necessary tools and equipment 

$96,722.75 for a total price of $845,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the expenditure is necessary. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis amend the 2020-2021 

FY Budget as provided in Attachment A. 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on _________, 2020 by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
103

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.



 

 

 
 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT  
2020-2021 

 
 Department 
 Public Utilities $          845,000 
 Total $          845,000 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY FUND  
2020-2021 

 

Fund 
 Fleet $          845,000 
 Total $          845,000 
 
 
 

 
SUMMARY OF TRANSFERS BY FUND  

2020-2021 
 

Transfer In 

 

Fund   
  Fleet $          845,000 
       Total $          845,000 
 
 

Transfer Out  

 

Fund   
  General Services $          845,000 
       Total $          845,000 
 

ATTACHMENT A OF ATTACHMENT 1 

104

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.



84

ATTACHMENT 2 

105

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.



 

106

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Fire Department 

DATE: October 5, 2020 

SUBJECT: Receive and File – Update on Fire Station 2 located at 2300 Minnewawa 
Avenue 

Staff: John Binaski, Fire Chief 

Recommendation: Receive and File 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Field Observation Report from Associated Design and Engineering 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to receive and file the Field Observation Report and findings by Associated 
Design and Engineering, Inc. outlining the current deficiencies of Fire Station 2 and the plan 
moving forward. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
In late May of 2020, personnel from the City’s Facilities Maintenance division were attempting 
to install required new electrical for an overhead garage door replacement project and access 
to the attic area of Fire Station 2. Upon entering the attic, it was recognized that several of the 
structural trusses were separating or broken. It was determined by City staff that the best 
course of action would be to hire an outside structural engineering firm to evaluate the current 
condition of the station.  
 
On September 18, 2020, the City received the engineer’s report and the findings are attached. 
Based on these findings, it is now apparent that immediate work needs to be done to repair 
the station or a plan developed for replacing the station. The station was built in 1977 and 
occupied in 1978.  Minimal renovations have been completed over this time leaving the fire 
station unable to meet the current needs of the Fire Department.   
 

  

107

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



BACKGROUND 
After Facilities Maintenance discovered additional separated truss connections, broken 
trusses, and sagging portions of the building, the City contracted with Associated Design and 
Engineering to complete a non-destructive review of the structural integrality of Fire Station 2. 
A very extensive report was completed showing structural failures throughout the building. The 
engineer’s report rated the priority of repairs from one to five, with one being needs to be 
repaired immediately. If all repairs listed in the report were made, the engineer estimates that 
this would only give the structure another five years of use. 

 
City staff has reviewed the report and is currently working on two paths to move forward. The 
first is developing a realistic cost estimate to repair all of the required items. In addition, it is 
estimated that once repairs are started, additional items will need to be repaired since this 
engineer’s study was non-destructive. As structural portions of the building are removed, 
additional items showing water damage or fatigue will then be noticed. A brief list of items 
needing repair is as follows: 
 
1. All of the exterior fascia removed and replaced. 
2. All of the ceiling in the apparatus bay removed, trusses repaired, and the ceiling 

reinstalled. 
3. At a minimum, the first three rows of the tile roof will need to be removed and the 

underlayment replaced or repaired. Additional roof repairs are also required for the 
racking tiles.  

4. A significant portion of the exterior siding will need to be removed. 
5. All of the roof flashing will need to be removed and replaced. 
6. Portions of the ceiling inside the living quarters will need to be removed, trusses repaired, 

and the ceiling repaired. 
7. The area above the back patio (which holds the mechanical items of the building such as 

HVAC) will need to be strengthened and repaired. In addition, both structural supports 
will need to be removed and replaced. 

 
Per the report (Attachment 1), numerous repairs are needed and it is estimated that the repair 
costs would be significant to just extend the life of the building for another five years. Also, the 
building does not have proper living quarters for a workforce with varying genders. The kitchen 
is original and the bathrooms are not single-use as required under current law. The open dorm 
room was converted into four bedrooms, but does not provide for adequate safety based on 
required exiting. Thus, staff is also working on a second plan. 

 
The second plan would be to build a metal structure at the Training Center to house the three-
person crew while the current site is cleared and a new fire station is built. This appears to be 
the preferred path for multiple reasons. We currently have a design with current specifications 
already in place for new Fire Station 6. This would save in design time and costs, and this 
project has already been valued engineered.  
 

  

108

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



Building a new fire station would ensure 40 years of use and meet the needs of the Department 
as compared to the current 42 year old building. A new Fire Station 2 would include individual 
dorm rooms, single person bathrooms, modern kitchen, fire sprinklers, and more items that 
other stations in the City have, and the Department has included in their station needs.  
 
Lastly, fire stations are considered essential service under the California Code and currently 
Fire Station 2 does not meet this standard. We have shoring in place in the apparatus bay to 
hold up the structure along with shoring the back patio to hold up the mechanical items, but 
this is not a long term solution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None at this time. City staff is cost estimating both options for further study to determine which 
plan would be more feasible. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Receive and file the attached structural engineering report outlining the current structural 
deficiencies of Fire Station 2. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
City staff will develop realistic cost estimates for repairing or replacing Fire Station 2.   
 
Prepared by: John Binaski, Fire Chief 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager __AH___  

109

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



110

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.

katiek
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



111

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



112

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



113

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



114

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



115

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



116

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



117

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



118

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



119

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



120

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



121

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



122

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.


	Top
	1.	ADM - Anti-Racism Proclamation
	ADM - Anti-Racism Proclamation

	3.	ADM - Minutes for 9/14 and 9/21 201005
	200914 Minutes
	200921 Minutes

	4.	FIRE - Staff Vehicles
	FIRE - Staff Vehicles SR
	FIRE - Staff Vehicles ATT1 Res. 20-

	5.	GSD Retiree Medical Plan 2020 201005
	GSD Retiree Medical Insurance SR
	GSD -Retiree Health Res ATT 1 RES 20-

	6.	PDS- CIP 19-10 Award  201005
	PDS - CIP 19-10 - Staff Report
	PDS - CIP 19-10 - ATT 1 Vicinity Map

	7.	PDS - TM 6080 Final Acceptance  201005
	PDS - TM 6080 Final Acceptance - SR
	PDS - TM 6080 Final Acceptance - ATT 1 - Vicinity Map

	8.	PDS - CIP 18-10  201005
	PDS - CIP 18-10 - Staff Report
	PDS - CIP 18-10 - ATT 1 Vicinity Map

	9.	PDS - CIP 18-13  201005
	PDS - CIP 18-13 - Staff Report 
	PDS - CIP 18-13 - ATT 1 Vicinity Map

	10.	PD - JAG Grant Budget Amendment
	PD - JAG Grant SR
	PD - JAG Grant ATT 1

	11.	PD - OTS Grant Budget Amendment
	PD - OTS Grant Budget Amendment SR
	PD - OTS Grant Budget Amendment  ATT 1
	PD - OTS Grant Budget Amendment ATT 2

	12.	GSD - Transit Fares 201005
	GSD - Administrative Fee Transit Fares SR
	GSD - Administrative Fee Transit Fares ATT 1 RES 20-

	13.	FIRE - SAFER
	FIRE - SAFER SR
	FIRE - SAFER ATT1 Res. 20-

	14.	FIRE - AFG
	FIRE - AFG SR
	FIRE - AFG ATT1 Res. 20-

	15.	FIRE - Engine 6
	FIRE - Engine 6 SR
	FIRE - Engine 6 ATT1 Res. 20-
	FIRE - Engine 6 ATT2 Price Quote from Golden State

	16.	FIRE - Station 2
	FIRE - Station 2 SR
	FIRE - Station 2 ATT 1 Field Observation Report from Associated Design and Engineering

	Bottom

